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BYD Company Limited (“BYD” or “the Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, “the Group”; stock code: H shares: 01211 (HKD counter);
81211 (RMB counter); A shares: 002594) is principally engaged in
automobile business which mainly includes new energy vehicles,
handset components and assembly services, rechargeable batteries and
photovoltaics business. Meanwhile, with its technological superiority, the
Group actively develops urban rail transportation business segment.

As a pioneer and leader in the global new energy vehicle industry, relying
on its strong technological accumulation in the fields of power batteries,
motors and electronic control and through continuous technological
innovation, the Group has developed its long-term and sustainable core
competitive advantages which established the leading position of the
Group in the global new energy vehicle industry and accelerated the
transformation and upgrade of the global automobile industry.

BYD is one of the leading rechargeable battery manufacturers in the global
arena. As to the field of consumer batteries, the Group’s li-ion batteries are
widely used in various consumer electronic products and new intelligent
products, major clients of which include leading consumer electronics
manufacturers such as Samsung and Dell, as well as global leading
professional robot brands such as Ecovacs. As to the field of power
batteries, the Group has developed “Blade Batteries”, the highly safe LFP
batteries, to better meet the urgent demand of safety in the market, and
to speed up the pace of LFP batteries returning to the mainstream market
of power batteries. As to the field of energy storage batteries, the Group
focuses on applications such as power grid energy storage, industrial
and commercial energy storage and household energy storage to provide
cleaner and more sustainable energy storage solutions to customers.

As an important move of the Group in the field of clean energy, the
photovoltaics business has a complete industrial chain layout covering
silicon wafer, solar cells, photovoltaic modules and photovoltaic system
application, etc. It connects all processes from energy collection, storage
to application. The Group will proactively develop new technologies to
promote the continuous upgrade of its products.

As a global leading provider of high-tech and innovative products in the
electronics field, the Group provides customers around the world with
one-stop product solutions relying on its core advantages in electronic
information, Al, 5G and Internet of Things, thermal management, new
materials, precision molds and digital manufacturing technologies. The
Group engages in a wide variety of electronics business ranging from
smart phones, tablet PCs, AIDC (Al servers, thermal management, power
management, etc.), smart home, game hardware, unmanned aerial
vehicles, 3D printers, Internet of Things, robots, communication equipment
to other diversified market areas. Leveraging its competence in highly
vertical integration, the Group is able to provide customers with a full range
of services, and quickly and efficiently respond to the market's changing
demands.

Urban rail transportation business is an important area for the Group’s
future development. With its technology and cost advantages in the area
of new energy, the Group has successfully developed medium-capacity
“SkyRail” and low-capacity “SkyShuttle” with high efficiency and low cost,
which, together with new energy vehicles, achieves the three-dimensional
coverage of urban public transportation, and drives the long-term and
sustainable development of the Group while helping alleviate urban traffic
jam and air pollution.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MB%REE

INTERIM RESULTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED

BE—_T_MEANA=1tAHLNEADEE

30 JUNE 2024 (THE PERIOD) #& (B A)

Turnover 15.76% to RMB301,127 million
R EAREZ01127TEE T
Gross profit 26.42% to RMB60,267 million
EF EARKEG0,267EHE T
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 24.44% to RMB13,631 million
ISYNSIE/ 2PN Epv EARMA3631HET
Earnings per share 24.14% to RMB4.68
BRAF EARE4687T
HIGHLIGHTS BE

The sales of new energy vehicles continued to reach a record
high, ranking first in the world with increasing market share
and expanding brand influence.

Disruptive technology boosted brand development and
improved multi-brand hierarchical deployment, which has
brought the Company’s new energy vehicle business to a new
level.

The Company accelerated its expansion in overseas markets
and the progress of localised manufacturing and speeded up
the development of its new energy passenger vehicle business
in overseas markets, so as to further expand market space.

In terms of electronics business, the Company continued
to deepen its cooperation with key accounts both at home
and abroad, kept optimizing product structure, and actively
expanded new intelligent product business.

With leading innovative technologies in the industry, improving
brand strength, expanding scale advantage and strong
ability to control industrial chain cost, the Company has effectively
dealt with challenges brought by intensified industrial competition.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY ANALYSIS AND REVIEW
Automobiles and Batteries Business

In the first half of 2024, the world economy recovered moderately
with demonstrated resilience. However, international geopolitical
disturbances continued, international trade frictions and other issues
occurred frequently, the external environment became more complex,
severe and uncertain, and the economic recovery performance of
various countries was out of sync. While affected by the complex
international environment, China was encumbered by insufficient
effective demands domestically and the hardship of transition to new
growth drivers from old economic engines. The Chinese government
was actively and proactively addressing the challenges by taking
stronger measures to further promote reform and opening up, and
strengthened macroeconomic controls; as a result, the Chinese
economy, also boosted by the rebound of overseas demands and the
accelerated development of new quality productive forces, sustained
a positive trend of steady recovery, overall stability and continua
progress. According to the data released by the National Bureau of
Statistics, China’'s GDP grew by 5.0% year-on-year in the first half of
2024, which lays a solid foundation for China to achieve its annual
economic growth target this year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmR DM

In the first half of 2024, China’s automobile industry was hampered
by the complex macro environment and impeded by slower growth
of domestic demand and greater inventory pressure, meanwhile
encountering further challenges by intensified competition in the
Chinese market and the aggravated international trade protectionism.
However, with strong resilience, China’s automobile industry
rebounded and saw a gradual recovery of automobile consumption
amid the consumption stimulus policies announced by the central
and local governments, combined with marketing activities, offerings
of new models and other factors. According to the statistics from the
China Association of Automobile Manufacturers, the production and
sales volume of automobiles in China reached another record high
in the first half of 2024 to 13.891 million units and 14.047 million units
respectively, registering year-on-year growth of 4.9% and 6.1%. This
sustained growth momentum underscores the automobile industry’s
vital role as a key stabilizer for the growth of the industrial economy.
Notably, the sector of new energy vehicles delivered outstanding
performance by maintaining robust development momentum and
recording surging production and sales. China’s new energy vehicle
market witnessed production of 4.929 million units and sales of
4.944 million units in the first half of 2024, growing by 30.1% and
32.0% year-on-year respectively. The penetration rate of new energy
vehicles rose month by month, while the proportion of internal
combustion engine vehicles (ICE vehicles) continued to decline, which
accelerated replacement of ICE vehicles with new energy vehicles in
the automobile industry. As at the end of June 2024, the cumulative
production and sales volume have both exceeded 30 million units
in China’s new energy vehicle sector, signifying the formation of a
large-scale market. China continued to be the leader in the global
market by maintaining strong growth in auto exports in the first half
of 2024. According to the statistics from the General Administration
of Customs of the People’s Republic of China consolidated by the
China Association of Automobile Manufacturers, China’s auto exports
amounted to 2.793 million vehicles in the first half of 2024, representing
a year-on-year increase of 30.5%, and China surpassed Japan again
to further consolidate its first place in the global chart of auto exports.
It is noteworthy that the flourishing new energy vehicle sector satisfied
overseas consumers’ expectations for high-quality products and
services, and became the firm pillar of the transformation of the global
auto industry. In the first half of 2024, exports of China’s new energy
vehicles reached 605,000 units, registering a year-on-year growth of
13.2%. Through technological advancement, value creation, improved
quality, upgraded services, stronger product power and brand power,
Chinese automakers have been recognized by more consumers, and
witnessed a steady expansion of market shares for the brands they
have developed. The statistics of the China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers showed that in the first half of 2024, the share of
domestic brand passenger vehicles in China’s auto market exceeded
60%, setting a record high and China’s auto market landscape is
reshaping.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The development of new energy vehicles is the only approach for
China to evolve from a participant to an industry leader and aligns
with the global trend of transition to sustainable and low-carbon
development. To consolidate and expand the current development
advantages of new energy vehicles and intelligent cars, the Chinese
government has introduced a series of expedient supportive policies,
hoping to promote the high-quality development of the auto industry.
In January 2024, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology
(the “MIIT”) and other four departments jointly released the Notice
on Promoting the Pilot Application Program for “Vehicle-Road-Cloud
Integration” of Intelligent Connected Vehicles (R EFFIRIABE S
BeAEE B ERE B EARE ITIER@A)), to advance the
construction of infrastructure of “Vehicle-Road-Cloud Integration”
and lay the foundation for the industrial development of intelligent
connected vehicles. In March, the State Council announced the
Action Plan for the Promotion of the Large Scale Equipment Renewal
and Trade-in of Consumer Goods ((HEIARIEREEFHFEE &
LAE#BFTITE) 5 Z)), initiating the marketing campaign for trade-
in of automobiles across the whole country, encouraging auto
manufacturers and dealers to promote the marketing campaign,
guiding the virtuous competition of the industry and stimulating
tiered pricing and renewal consumption. In April, seven departments
including the Ministry of Commerce and the Ministry of Finance
released the Implementation Rules on Subsidies for Trade-in of
Automobiles (CTBLAERFHALEMAMA)), providing clear
guidelines on the scope and standards for offering subsidies for trade-
in of automobiles, the application, approval and granting procedures of
such subsidies, for the purpose of phasing out vehicles of old models
and old designs, which is conducive to expanding the popularity of
new energy vehicles, and aiming to boost the energy conservation and
emission reduction plan and the upgrading of the automobile industry
and to further bolster the potential of automobile consumption in the
domestic market. The MIIT, the National Development and Reform
Commission and other three departments activated the campaign
of promoting new energy vehicles to rural areas for 2024 in May,
to develop a better environment for buying and driving new energy
vehicles, thereby achieving greater new energy vehicle penetration in
lower-tier markets. In the same month, the State Council announced
the Action Plan for Energy Conservation and Carbon Reduction for
2024-2025, proposing to lift the restrictions for buying new energy
vehicles gradually, implementing supporting policies such as offering
facilitation to new energy vehicles and enabling the expansion of new
energy vehicle market, to lay a solid foundation for achieving carbon
peaking and carbon neutrality. In June, the MIIT and other three
departments published the Basic Information of Consortiums Admitted
to the Pilot Program for the Access and Road Use of Intelligent
Connected Vehicles (CGE AL e T E AN ERRBITH B S 82
HARZ B)), with an aim to support the road use and mass production
of L3-level (conditional driving automation) driverless cars and drive
China’s intelligent and connected new energy vehicle sector towards
high-quality development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBNWEDW

In terms of rechargeable batteries, the consumer electronics industry
recovered in the first half of 2024, which stimulated the demand for
upstream batteries. In terms of energy storage, the market saw a
sustained prosperity amid the increasing storage demand driven by
the favorable policies introduced by many countries around the world,
the accelerated energy structure transformation and the continuous
technological breakthrough. As for the photovoltaic industry, in the first
half of 2024, in spite of various challenges, China saw a record high of
new installed capacity in the photovoltaic industry. Global demand for
green energy remained strong and technical innovation and industrial
upgrading became the main theme of industry development.

Handset Components and Assembly Business

The global smart phone market recovered in the first half of 2024 as
it was fueled by the strong consumption of emerging markets and the
upgrading of high-end models. According to the statistics from IDC,
the shipment of global smart phones increased by 7.1% to 575 million
units in the first half of 2024. Driven by the rapid evolution of artificial
intelligence (Al) technology and the replacement cycle, China’s smart
phone market was in an upswing in the first half of 2024. According
to the data released by the China Academy of Information and
Communications Technology, in the first half of 2024, the shipment
of domestic mobile phones reached 147 million units, representing
a year-on-year increase of 13.2%; in particular, the shipment of 5G
smart phones was 124 million units, representing a year-on-year
growth of 21.5%, accounting for 84.4% of the shipment of mobile
phones in the corresponding period. In terms of the PC field, the rising
Al wave around the world expanded the scope of applications, and
the rigid demand for Al-enabled PCs experienced continuous growth
accordingly. The statistics from IDC showed that global PC shipments
increased by 2.2% year-on-year to 125 million units in the first half of
2024. The global tablet computers shipments reached 65 million units,
representing a year-on-year increase of 10.9%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

BYD Company Limited (“BYD” or “the Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, “the Group”) is principally engaged in the automobile
business which mainly includes new energy vehicles, handset
components and assembly business, rechargeable batteries and
photovoltaic business. Meanwhile, with its technological superiority,
the Group actively develops urban rail transportation and other
business segments. In the first half of 2024, the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately RMB301,127 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 15.76%, among which, the revenue from the
automobiles and related products, and other products amounted
to approximately RMB228,317 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 9.33%; the revenue from the handset components,
assembly service and other products amounted to approximately
RMB72,778 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 42.45%.
These business segments accounted for 75.82% and 24.17% of the
Group’s total revenue, respectively.

Automobiles and Batteries Business

As a pioneer and leader in the global new energy vehicle industry,
relying on its precise strategic layout, leading technical strength,
forward-looking market insights and well-developed industrial system,
the Group has steadily improved its brand power and speeded up the
global expansion of its automobiles business in a comprehensive way,
creating opportunities for the Chinese automobile industry to enter
into new international markets. Under the background of increasingly
fierce market competition between new energy vehicles and ICE
vehicles, the Group embraces and participates in competition in a
proactive way to accelerate the increase of the penetration rate of new
energy vehicles, build a world-class brand during competition and
contribute to a more profound change in the industry, thus achieving
substantial development in its business. According to data from the
China Association of Automobile Manufacturers, in the first half of
2024, the market share of the Group’s new energy vehicles further
increased, winning the sales champion of the domestic automobiles,
retaining its No. 1 position in the global sales of new energy vehicles.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Being committed to independent innovation, the Group vigorously
applies disruptive technologies to boost new quality productive
forces, thereby fostering new drivers for the high-quality development
of the industry. With strong R&D genes and rich engineer culture, the
Group’s team of more than 100,000 engineers has carried out in-depth
development in core technology fields to accelerate the launch of a
series of world-leading forward-looking and revolutionary technologies
from electrification to intelligence, thereby creating its unique
competitiveness step by step. During the BYD Dream Day 2024 held
in January, the Group unveiled its Integrated Vehicle Intelligence
strategy, the new strategy of the Group in relation to intelligent
development, and showcased its technological achievements such
as intelligent driving, intelligent parking, and intelligent cockpit,
demonstrating the Group’s strengths in intelligentization and its
strategic plans for the future, and marking that the Group is leading
the industry to pursue intelligent vehicles in a new direction. The
Group was also selected as one of the first batch on the pilot list of
access and on-road traffic of intelligent connected vehicles (L3 level)
in China during the Period, representing the recognition of the Group’s
R&D level and technological strength in intelligent driving at the policy
level. In May, the Group rolled out the “e-Platform 3.0 Evo”, which
integrated five globally pioneering technology clusters, including 12-
in-1 intelligent electric drive, intelligent heat pump system with wide
temperature range and high efficiency, global domain intelligent
fast charging, CTB whole vehicle safety architecture, and intelligent
motion control, with an aim to making auto driving experience safer,
more efficient, and more intelligent. The Group also launched its
“Fifth-generation DM Technology” in May. Benefiting from its strong
technological foundation of electric-based powertrain architecture,
vehicle thermal management architecture with full temperature range,
and electronic and electrical architecture with intelligent-electric
fusion, the Group has achieved the world’s highest engine thermal
efficiency of 46.06% available for mass production, the world’s lowest
fuel consumption at low battery charge level of 2.9L per 100km, and
the world’s longest mileage of 2,100km, creating a new era of “2”
fuel consumption and redefining a new benchmark for plug-in hybrid
electric technology. It represents China’s leading position in plug-in
hybrid electric technology around the world and leads a new wave of
technological innovation.

In the field of new energy passenger vehicles, relying on the repeated
iteration and innovation of the core technologies and the precise
insights into consumer demand, the Group has gradually improved
the multi-brand gradient layout consisting of the “BYD” brand, the
“FANGCHENGBAQ” brand, the “Denza” brand and the “Yangwang”
brand, covering from home to luxury, from mass to personalized,
better satisfying users’ automobile needs in all scenarios. In the first
half of 2024, despite the complexity of the macroeconomic situation
and the increasingly fierce competition in the market, the brands
worked together to drive the Group’s sales volume to steadily grow
and hit record highs.
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As the Group’s first passenger vehicle brand, the “BYD” brand
further consolidated and strengthened the leading position of the
Group in the mass market and gradually developed into two series
of products, the “Dynasty” and the “Ocean”. In the first half of
2024, the Group actively optimized the product matrix of the “BYD”
brand, initiated a new product cycle through product optimization
and technology upgrades, and launched several iterative and new
models, realizing “NEV cheaper than ICE”, and accelerating the
promotion of the subversion of new energy vehicles to traditional fuel-
powered vehicles. The “Dynasty” series perfectly integrate the leading
technology and Chinese fashion trend to create Chinese fashion
and smart new energy vehicles, with five family products of “Han”,
“Tang”, “Song”, “Qin” and “Yuan”. As one of the signature products
of domestic brands’ high-end process, “Han” has remained popular
on the market since its launch and even became the sales champion
in the B+C-class sedan market in June. As the Group’s medium/large
flagship SUV series product, “Tang” was launched with renewed
designs during the Period, which further strengthened its product
competitiveness. The “Song” family continued to lead the mainstream
SUV market with strong product strength. For the “Qin” family, as the
first model equipped with the “Fifth-generation DM technology”, “Qin
L DM-i” shocked the market immediately after its launch in May, with
demand outstripping supply, leading the mid-sized sedan market in
terms of various dimensions from fuel efficiency, technology, design,
space, driving, intelligence to safety. For the “Yuan” family, “Yuan UP”,
as the first AO-class pure electric SUV equipped with “e-Platform 3.0”,
was officially launched in March, becoming a new choice for urban
pure electric travel mode.
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The “Ocean” series adopts the design concept of ocean aesthetics,
with a product position aimed at younger generations, to further satisfy
the diversified needs of consumers. During the Period, the “Ocean”
series of products successively represented an upgrading of the
previous editions, further enhancing the product competitiveness. In
terms of new models, relying on the new generation of “e-Platform
3.0 Evo”, the mid-sized urban intelligent-electric SUV “Sea Lion 07
EV” was officially launched in May and equipped with 12 world’s
first hardcore technologies, combining safety, comfort, intelligence,
performance, efficiency and appearance aesthetics, realizing a
comprehensive lead in every aspects from technology to products
and further to experience, and building a new intelligent-electric travel
mode covering all scenarios for its users. In the same month, the
“Seal 06 DM-i”", which was also equipped with the “Fifth-generation
DM Technology”, was launched together with the “Qin L DM-i", which
further refined the Group’s product matrix.

“FANGCHENGBAOQ?”, a professional and personalized brand, is
built on professional new energy technology platform and vehicle
architecture, inviting users to explore unique driving experience
and a new lifestyle in different personalized scenarios. In April, the
“FANGCHENGBAOQ” brand held its Spring Launch Event, officially
unveiling its new product matrix, including the “583” hardcore family
composed of “BAO 5,” “BAO 8,” and concept vehicle “SUPER 37,
demonstrating “FANGCHENGBAOQ'’s” novel solutions for automotive
product forms and user lifestyles. Also in April, “BAO 5”, the super
hybrid hardcore SUV, further launched “DiSus luxury version,”
allowing more users to enjoy the boundless freedom and comfortable
experience of the “DiSus-P” intelligent hydraulic body control system
(standard version).
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Focusing on the new energy luxury vehicle market, the “Denza”
brand builds its three core competitiveness with leading new energy
and safety technologies, smart luxury product quality and user eco-
services system, and endeavors to grow from the path-breaker of
China’s luxury new energy vehicle market to the leader of technologies
enabling luxury new energy vehicles. “Denza D9”, the first luxury MPV
under the “Denza” brand that integrates luxury, intelligence, power
and safety, has remained popular since its launch, and was launched
with renewed designs in March, retaining the title of China’'s MPV
monthly sales champion and winning the semi-annual cumulative
sales champion, becoming the new benchmark for China’s high-end
luxury new energy MPVs. In April, the brand new “Denza N7” was
officially launched and pushed the City Navigation function with OTA
to provide users with a constantly refreshed new luxury intelligent
driving experience. Additionally, “Denza Z9 GT”, the intelligent luxury
flagship sedan, was officially unveiled during the Period, debuting the
Group’s next disruptive technology platform and redefining traditional
luxury. In June, the “Denza “ brand was officially launched in Hong
Kong with the debut of the right-hand drive “Denza D9”. Hong Kong’s
first Denza flagship store opened at the end of June, bringing a new
luxury travel experience.

Leveraging the Group’s innovative technologies, top-tier industrial
capabilities and forward-thinking design, the high-end brand
“Yangwang” opened up the million-RMB-worth new energy market with
subversive technologies and epoch-defining products, and reshaped
the high-end brand values in the new energy era. In February, the
million-RMB-worth pure electric performance supercar “Yangwang
U9” was officially launched, equipped with two core technologies
such as “e* Platform” technology platform and the “DiSus-X” intelligent
all-active body control system. With its distinctive body design
and beyond the traditional supercar performance and experience,
“Yangwang U9” offers the tastes of “track racing, urban driving and
leisure off-road fun”. In April, the Off-Road Player Edition of “Yangwang
U8” was officially launched, equipped with the iconic “e* Platform”
technology and “DiSus -P” intelligent hydraulic body control systems,
as well as the world’s first deeply integrated in-vehicle drone system,
setting a new standard for off-road experiences and enhancing
safety in off-road driving. Additionally, the million-RMB-worth new
energy flagship sedan “Yangwang U7” was also unveiled, garnering
significant market attention.
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To align with the new phase featuring intensive product launches,
rapid channel expansion, and swift market growth, both the
“Denza” and “FANGCHENGBAOQO” brands accelerated their channel
development. In June, the two brands announced the introduction of
a dealer partnership model to establish a diversified channel system,
providing higher-quality services to users in more regions.

While consolidating and expanding its development advantages in the
domestic market, the Group has been accelerating the globalization
of its passenger vehicle business by relying on its comprehensive
strength of “leading technology, leading safety, leading quality and
leading market” and seizing the time window and development
opportunities. As of June 2024, the Group’s new energy passenger
vehicles have entered 77 countries and regions, including Brazil,
Germany, Japan and Thailand, becoming a favourite among global
consumers and ranking among the best-selling new energy vehicles in
several countries. During the Period, the Group continuously enriched
its vehicle matrix, with multiple brand models making their international
debuts and launches which involved pure electric models and plug-
in hybrid electric models, offering exceptional green travel options to
consumers worldwide.
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With the accelerated global layout of its passenger vehicle
business, the Group proactively boosted the progress of localized
manufacturing. In January, the Group’s factory in Uzbekistan
commenced production, with “Song PLUS DM-i Champion Edition”,
the first batch of mass-produced new energy model, being rolling
off the production line in June. Meanwhile, steady progress was
seen in the construction of the Group’s factories in Thailand, Brazil
and Hungary. In addition, adhering to the concept of win-win
cooperation, the Group joined hands with many high-quality global
dealers to provide local consumers with high-quality new energy
vehicle products and services, actively built its own shipping fleet and
enhanced brand development and promotion, thereby promoting the
transformation of global vehicle electrification. In January, the first Ro-
Ro ships for automobile transportation of the Group successfully made
its maiden voyage, marking a new phase in the overseas market
expansion of the Group. During the Period, the Group became the
official partner for the UEFA EURO 2024 and the CONMEBOL COPA
AMERICA USA 2024 in the Latin American region, promoting the spirit
of sport and advocating for green travel through various activities.

In the first half of 2024, sound profitability continued in the new energy
passenger vehicle business of the Group by virtue of the industry-
leading innovative technology, the improving brand power, the fast-
developing overseas business, the continuous expansion of scale
advantages and the strong industry chain cost control capability.

In the field of battery electric buses, the Group continued to carry
out in-depth market development, launched quality products with
leading technology to meet the needs of different markets, optimized
its business models, and worked with various partners to continuously
improve the quality of urban public transportation services and lead
the transformation of electrification of the global public transportation.
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In the field of urban rail transit, the Group focused on solving urban
microcirculation and last-mile problems by steadily promoting the
application of the medium-capacity “SkyRail” and low-capacity
“SkyShuttle” with proprietary intellectual property rights and core
technology of the whole industrial chain, providing effective solutions
to traffic jams in cities all over the world.

In terms of external cooperation, the Group actively strengthened
cooperation with partners in different professional fields around the
world. In February, the Group established a strategic partnership
with Raizen Power, a Brazilian energy firm owned by Shell, aiming
to establish BYD-Shell electric vehicle charging stations in eight
major cities across Brazil over the next three years, thus providing
convenient and efficient charging services for local users. In the same
month, the Group also signed a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) with Arbal BNP Paribas Group (ARVAL), officially establishing
a strategic cooperative relationship. Both parties will work together to
provide electric mobility solutions tailored to the emission reduction
objectives of European customers, jointly promoting Europe’s
transition to a sustainable and eco-friendly landscape.

In terms of rechargeable batteries, the Group continued to carry out in-
depth development and maintained its leading position in technology
in China. Product R&D went smoothly during the Period, which
contributed to the steady development of the battery business. While
meeting its own power battery demand, the Group also achieved
success in actively expanding external customers, accelerating the
market deployment for globalization. Thanks to extensive efforts in
energy storage market in the past years, the Group’s energy storage
business covered such areas of applications as power source energy
storage, grid energy storage, industrial and commercial energy
storage, household energy storage, providing global customers
with full-scenario, full-value and ecosystem-based energy storage
solutions and facilitating the new energy storage industry to achieve
leapfrog development. In respect of the photovoltaic business, under
the guidance of the “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality” goal,
the Group accelerated new technology R&D to further build up its
comprehensive competitive advantages and prepare for the rapid
development of the industry.
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Handset Components and Assembly Business

The Group is a global leading provider of high-tech and innovative
products, providing customers around the world with one-stop product
solutions relying on its core advantages in electronic information,
Al, 5G and Internet of Things, thermal management, new materials,
precision molds and digital manufacturing technologies. The Group
engages in businesses segments covering consumer electronics, new
intelligent products and other diversified market segments. With its
industry-leading R&D and manufacturing strength, extensive product
lines and strong customer base, the Group has embarked on a new
phase of business growth. During the period under review, despite
the complex and ever-changing international political and economic
environment, the Group still showed strong resilience and achieved a
continuous increase in sales scale.

In terms of consumer electronics business, the Group, relying on top-
notch technological superiority and strong manufacturing capabilities,
has been deeply involved in the application of new materials and the
development of new products for several customers, contributing to
the iteration and innovation of their products and seizing development
opportunities together with our customers. The Group continued to
focus on the high-end Android market, providing a full range of high-
quality services to customers. During the Period, benefiting from the
increased demand from both domestic and overseas customers, the
Android components and assembly business achieved substantial
growth. With respect to the business with major overseas customers,
the Group’s shares of the business have further enhanced due to
its outstanding business performance, which has resulted in a year-
on-year increase in shipment and revenue. In addition, the newly
acquired business at the end of 2023 has brought in rapid expansion
of the consumer electronics components business scale and more
long-term development opportunities, further consolidating the
Group’s leading position in the industry.

In terms of new intelligent product business, the Group continued
to enhance strategic cooperation with industry-leading customers
in various segments. Business segments such as unmanned aerial
vehicles, smart home and gaming hardware all maintained steady
development while ensuring stability. At the same time, the Group
continued to invest in the R&D of new products to embrace market
development opportunities, actively expanded new businesses and
enhanced its business layout in AIDC, industrial robots and other high-
growth segments.
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PROSPECT AND STRATEGY

Looking forward to the second half of 2024, the continued geopolitical
tensions and the rising trade protectionism will pose a certain level of
challenges to global economic growth. Despite the complex external
political and economic environment, China’s economic maintained
stable development with a favorable long-term trend by virtue of its
solid foundation, strong resilience, great potential and sufficient growth
momentum. It is anticipated that the government will proactively keep
implementing strong macro policies to continuously boost high-quality
and healthy economic development through vigorously energizing the
market and endogenous momentum. New energy vehicles are one
of the important carriers of new quality productive forces in China’s
development and are in line with the trend of the industrial revolution.
In July, the National Development and Reform Commission and
the Ministry of Finance issued the Notice on Certain Measures on
Strengthening Support for Large-Scale Equipment Replacement and
Consumer Goods Replacement (BRI 15 KRB REE FM
HEBRERFIAE THEME)) to increase the subsidy standards for
scrapping old cars, which is also favorable to the consumption of new
energy vehicles. In the same month, multiple ministries including the
MIIT issued the List of Pilot Cities for Applying “Vehicle-Road-Cloud
Integration” of Intelligent Connected Vehicles (& 8E 43 /58 [ B i
E—EEAREIR TR E)) to designate 20 cities as pilot cities
for applying “vehicle-road-cloud integration” of intelligent connected
vehicles, accelerating the development of the intelligent connected
vehicle-road cooperativeness. Driven by the “policies + industries”
synergy, the penetration rate of new energy vehicle increased
continuously, promoting the high-quality development of the intelligent
connected vehicle industry. With the maturing of new energy vehicle
technologies and rise of consumer awareness, together with policy
support, there will be a broader development space in the new energy
vehicle market, and the strong and rapid growth momentum will be
maintained and the penetration rate is expected to hit another record
high.
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Automobiles and Batteries Business

The Group will adhere to its development strategy, strengthen the
independence and controllability of its core technologies, and
continue to enhance the competitiveness of its products. Focusing
on market trend and aligning with consumer demands, the Group
will further improve its multi-brand matrix. The Group will accelerate
the global expansion of its business to provide global consumers
with excellent new energy vehicle products with its comprehensive
strength in new energy vehicle area, and to help China’s automobile
industry to lead the global new energy vehicle transformation.

In the field of new energy passenger vehicles, the Group will continue
to deepen the R&D of core electric and intelligent technologies, drive
product upgrade with innovative technologies, and empower multi-
brand and multi-gradient layout to meet customers’ differentiated
driving needs, thus consolidating and strengthening the leading
position of the Group. In terms of the “BYD” brand, the “Song L DM-i”
and “Song PLUS DM-i” equipped with the “Fifth-generation DM
Technology” have been unveiled simultaneously in July, reinforcing
the leading position of “Song” family in the SUV market. In August,
the “2025 Seal EV” and “Seal 07 DM-i” have been officially introduced
to the market, which were equipped with two latest technologies
of “e-Platform 3.0 Evo” and the “Fifth-generation DM Technology”
respectively, providing users with better driving experience and higher
product value. In addition, the “FANGCHENGBAQO” brand announced
the launch of brand renewal strategy at its first anniversary, which
involves a full expansion to future product lines, with features
expanding from niche fields to inclusive of mainstream values, aiming
to cater with the personalized driving needs of a more diverse and
wider user base.

In the field of overseas passenger vehicle business, the Group
will leverage its leading strengths in terms of new energy vehicle
technologies and product capabilities to accelerate the improvement
of multi-region capacity layout and the establishment of sales
network, and expand its product matrix. The Group will continue
to work together with its partners to develop overseas markets and
provide global consumers with differentiated and competitive products
and quality services. In July, the Group’s Thailand factory has its
construction completed and was put into operation, and witnessed the
Group’s 8 millionth new energy vehicle roll-off, achieving a leapfrog
growth in the new energy vehicle business, also contributing to the
transformation and upgrade of Thailand’s automobile industry chain. In
the same month, the Group established a global strategic partnership
with Uber, an international tech company in movement and delivery, to
jointly promote the penetration of new energy vehicles.
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In the field of battery electric buses, the Group will continue to
empower green upgrades in global public transportation systems,
provide sustainable, zero-pollution and intelligent public transportation
solutions to different countries and regions, launch zero-emission,
high quality, green and environmentally friendly public transportation
products and services recognized by the market through industrial
leading-edge innovative technologies, and promote rapid and healthy
development of a low-carbon society.

In terms of urban rail transit, the Group will continue to innovate in the
areas of green and low-carbon, intelligent and smart, integrated and
efficient development, extend the electric vehicle industry chain to the
field of rail transit, focus on promoting low-carbon and environmentally
friendly urban rail transit products, namely “SkyRail” and “SkyShuttle”,
and continuously expand urban applications and international
cooperation to help cities build low-carbon transportation and achieve
high-quality and sustainable development of green and intelligent
transportation.

In terms of rechargeable batteries, the Group will continue to enhance
its independent innovation and R&D capabilities, actively promote the
application of new technologies and product upgrades, further expand
its customer base, continue to enlarge its domestic and international
business coverage, expand market shares and facilitate sustainable
development of relevant businesses. In terms of photovoltaics
business, the Group will actively grasp the development trend of the
market, concentrate resources, focus on promotion of technology
breakthrough, improve product upgrading and transformation, to
usher in the growth opportunities of the industry with high-quality
products.

Handset Components and Assembly Business

In the second half of 2024, the Group will continue to deepen its layout
on the R&D and innovation of core technologies, further enhance its
vertical integration advantage, carry out in-depth development of its
key account strategy, and actively grasp market opportunity. While
maintaining our industry-leading position in traditional businesses,
the advanced deployment in the relevant product lines of emerging
businesses will maintain a good development momentum, leading the
continuous growth of the Group’s business and revenue scale.
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In terms of consumer electronics business, the market demand is
gradually recovering, coupled with the accelerated implementation of
Al applications and product upgrade innovation, it will help to drive
consumers’ demand for replacement, injecting new momentum into
the consumer electronics industry. As a global leading high-tech
innovative product provider, the Group will continue to strengthen its
leading technology advantages, fully grasping the new development
opportunities brought by market recovery and Al empowerment. The
Group will continue to deeply explore the core business potential
of its major overseas customers, further increase the product share
and actively expand into new categories to continue to expand its
business scale. In terms of Android business, the Group will continue
to deepen its strategic cooperation with customers in high-end
products, support the business development needs of customers, and
continuously assist in the iteration and upgrade of customer products.
Going forward, the Group will continue to expand the domestic and
international markets, strengthen its global layout, and constantly
drive the business growth of domestic and overseas customers in the
consumer electronic sector.

In terms of new intelligent product business, leveraging world-class
R&D capabilities, global layout and vertical integration advantages,
the Group will continue to explore other new product categories and
new markets with growth potential. New businesses such as AIDC and
industrial robots will start to be implemented gradually, continuously
driving the long-term sustainable development of new intelligent
product businesses. The Group is optimistic about the development
prospects of AIDC and is actively investing R&D resources for in-
depth layout, creating new business growth momentum. At present,
the Group has established a range of products and solutions covering
enterprise-level general servers, storage servers, Al servers, thermal
management and power management.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent
Company

During the Period, the Group’s revenue increased by 15.76% as
compared to the first half of 2023, mainly attributable to the growth
of the new energy vehicle business and the handset components
and assembly business. The profit attributable to equity holders of
the parent company increased by 24.44% as compared to the same
period of previous year, mainly attributable to the growth of the new
energy vehicle business.
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Segmental Information PEER
Comparisons of the Group’s revenue by product categories forthe six I TAREBRBE-_ZE-_NFE T -=F A
months ended 30 June 2024 and 2023 are illustrated as follows: =+ BIEXNEARERER DA E EBELLE -
Mobile handset Mobile handset
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assembly and assembly and
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Automobiles and Automobiles and
related products, related products,
and other products and other products
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Gross Profit and Margin EFRBEFE

The Group’s gross profit for the Period increased by approximately
26.42% to approximately RMB60,267 million. The gross profit margin
increased from approximately 18.33% for the first half of 2023 to
approximately 20.01% for the Period. The increase in gross profit
margin was mainly due to the growth of the new energy vehicle
business.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Period, the Group recorded an operating cash inflow
of approximately RMB14,178 million, as compared to an operating
cash inflow of approximately RMB81,971 million in the first half of
last year. The decrease in cash inflow of the Group during the Period
was mainly attributable to the increase in cash paid for goods and
services. Total borrowings as at 30 June 2024, including all bank
loans, were approximately RMB27,672 million, as compared to the
total borrowings as at 31 December 2023, including all bank loans, of
approximately RMB36,545 million. The maturity profile of bank loans
spread over a period of five years, with approximately RMB16,367
million repayable within one year, approximately RMB11,305 million
repayable within the second to fifth years. The Group had adequate
liquidity to meet daily liquidity management and capital expenditure
requirements, and controlled internal operating cash flows.

For the six months ended 30 June 2024, the turnover days of
receivables (including trade receivables, contract assets and
financing receivables) were approximately 48 days as compared
to approximately 46 days for the corresponding period in 2023,
which had no significant change. The inventory turnover days were
approximately 78 days for the six months ended 30 June 2024 as
compared to approximately 72 days for the corresponding period
in 2023. The change was mainly due to the fact that the year-on-
year increase of average inventory balance was higher than that of
operating costs.

Capital Structure

The Group’s financial division is responsible for the Group’s financial
risk management which operates according to policies implemented
and approved by senior management. As at 30 June 2024, borrowings
were mainly settled in RMB, while its cash and cash equivalents were
mainly held in RMB and USD. The Group maintained an appropriate
mix of equity and debt to ensure an effective capital structure during
the Period. As at 30 June 2024, all of the Group’s outstanding loans
were RMB loans, of which approximately 67% (31 December 2023:
67%) bore fixed interest rates and the rest bore floating interest rates.

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio
as low as possible. Net debt includes debt capital less monetary
funds. Equity represents equity attributable to owners of the parent
company. Therefore, the Group’s gearing ratio as at 30 June 2024 and
31 December 2023 was -11% and -44%, respectively.
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As at 30 June 2024, there were no land and buildings of the Group
which were pledged as collateral for long-term borrowings (31
December 2023: nil). As at 30 June 2024, there were no cash and
bank balances (31 December 2023: nil) which were subject to
restrictions as deposits of bank acceptance bills; cash and bank
balances with book value of approximately RMB222,496,000 (31
December 2023: RMB124,124,000) were subject to restrictions as
guarantee deposits, bid bond and others.

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk

Most of the Group’s income and expenditure are settled in RMB and
US dollars. During the Period, the Group did not experience any
significant difficulties in or impacts on its operations or liquidity due
to fluctuations in currency exchange rates. The Directors believe that
the Group has sufficient foreign exchange to meet its own foreign
exchange requirements and will adopt practical measures to prevent
exposure to exchange rate risk.

Employment, Training and Development

As at 30 June 2024, the Group had approximately 750 thousand
employees. During the Period, total staff cost accounted for
approximately 17.54% of the Group’s turnover. Employees’
remuneration was determined based on performance, qualifications
and prevailing industry practices, with compensation policies
being reviewed on a regular basis. Bonuses were also awarded to
employees, based on the appraisal on their annual performance.
Incentives were offered to encourage personal motivation.

In addition, the Group also adopted 2022 Employee Share Ownership
Plan (the "Employee Share Ownership Plan”) and Share Option
Incentive Scheme (the “Subsidiary Share Option Scheme”) of BYD
Semiconductor Company Limited (th3os@m &M HR R F),
which were approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 27 May 2022 and 16 June 2021,
respectively. For further details of the Employee Share Ownership Plan
and the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme, please refer to the sections
headed “2022 Employee Share Ownership Plan” and “Subsidiary
Share Option Scheme” below of this report respectively.
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2022 EMPLOYEE SHARE OWNERSHIP PLAN

References are made to the announcement dated 22 April 2022
and the circular dated 5 May 2022 (the “Circular”) of the Company
in relation to, among others, the adoption of the Employee Share
Ownership Plan (draft). The adoption was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 27 May 2022.

The Employee Share Ownership Plan is a discretionary employee
share ownership plan of the Company and does not involve the grant
of options to issue new Shares or any other new securities of the
Company. The Employee Share Ownership Plan is beneficial for the
Company to establish and improve the benefit sharing mechanism,
enhance the cohesion of employees and the competitiveness of
the Company, realizing its long-term sustainable development.
Participants include employee representative supervisors, senior
management of the Company, middle level management and core
backbone employees of BYD Group (other than the Directors and
chief executives of the Company and their respective associates).
The total number of participants of the Employee Share Ownership
Plan shall not exceed 12,000, and the entitlement of each employee
under the Employee Share Ownership Plan shall not exceed 1% of
the Company’s total share capital. The Employee Share Ownership
Plan transfers the A shares of the Company repurchased through non-
trading transfer and other methods permitted by laws and regulations.
The transfer price is RMBO per share, and the participants do not
need to make any payments.

The 5,511,024 A Shares held by the designated securities repurchase
account of the Company have all been granted, and the closing price
of the Company’s A shares was RMB323.00 per share on the trading
day immediately preceding the grant date. The aforesaid number of
shares transferred accounted for approximately 0.189% of the total
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

The first lock-up period of the Employee Share Ownership Plan had
expired on 15 July 2023, and 30% of the total number of shares of
the Company maintained under the Employee Share Ownership Plan
were vested, which correspond to 1,653,307 A Shares, representing
approximately 0.057% of the total issued share capital of the Company
of 2,909,265,855 shares as at the date of this report. The closing price
of the Company’s A shares was RMB264.41 per share on the trading
day immediately preceding the aforementioned vesting date.
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The second lock-up period of the Employee Share Ownership Plan
had expired on 15 July 2024, and 30% of the total number of shares of
the Company maintained under the Employee Share Ownership Plan
were vested, which corresponds to 1,653,307 A shares, representing
0.057% of the total share capital of the Company of 2,909,265,855
shares as at the date of this report. The closing price of the Company’s
A shares was RMB262.62 per share on the trading day immediately
preceding the vesting date.

The term of the Employee Share Ownership Plan shall be 48 months
from the date on which the Employee Share Ownership Plan is
considered and approved at the general meeting and the Company
announces that the last batch of the underlying shares is transferred
to the Employee Share Ownership Plan. Thus, the remaining life of the
Employee Share Ownership Plan is about 25 months as at 30 June
2024.

For details of the Employee Share Ownership Plan and repurchase of
A shares of the Company, please refer to the table below and note 11
to the financial statements in this report, respectively.

List out below are the details of movement of the A Shares under the
Employee Share Ownership Plan during the reporting period and up
to the date of this report:
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Notes:

(1) The participants of the Employee Share Ownership Plan do not
include directors, chief executives or substantial shareholders of
the Company or their respective associates; or any related entities
or service providers of the Company.

(2) All the 5,511,024 repurchased A Shares were granted on 15
July 2022. The closing price of the Company’s A shares was
RMB323.00 per share on the trading day immediately preceding
the grant date. The fair value of the granted shares as at the date
of the grant was RMB1,863,773,206.56.

The A Shares under the Employee Share Ownership Plan will be
unlocked in three tranches:

(a) The first period shall be of 12 months commencing from
the date of the last transfer of A Shares by the Employee
Share Ownership Plan and the relevant announcement by
the Company, with the number of shares unlocked being
30% of the total number of A Shares under the Employee
Share Ownership Plan;

(b) The second period shall be of 24 months commencing from
the date of the last transfer of A Shares by the Employee
Share Ownership Plan and the relevant announcement by
the Company, with the number of shares unlocked being
30% of the total number of A Shares under the Employee
Share Ownership Plan;

(c) The third period shall be of 36 months commencing from
the date of the last transfer of A Shares by the Employee
Share Ownership Plan and the relevant announcement by
the Company, and the number of shares unlocked being
40% of the total number of A Shares under the Employee
Share Ownership Plan;

(d) The unlocking and vesting of the shares granted is subject
to the fulfillment of relevant specific conditions. For the
specific conditions for the unlocking and vesting of the
shares granted, please refer to the Circular; and

(e) The company-level performance indicators for the vesting
of shares in the first unlocking period of the Employee
Share Ownership Plan are based on the operating income
in 2021, and the operating income growth rate in 2022
is not less than 30%. The assessment indicators at the
individual level are: (1) if the performance assessment is
for “to be improved”, the unlocking ratio at the individual
level will be 80%; (2) if the performance assessment is
“qualified or above”, the unlocking ratio at the individual
level will be 100%.

(3) No A Shares were cancelled or lapsed under the Employee Share
Ownership Plan during the reporting period.
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SUBSIDIARY SHARE OPTION SCHEME

References are made to the announcement dated 11 May 2021 and
the circular dated 31 May 2021 (the “Circular”) of the Company in
relation to, among others, the proposed adoption of the Subsidiary
Share Option Scheme. The adoption of the Subsidiary Share Option
Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 16 June 2021. The Subsidiary
Share Option Scheme does not constitute a share option scheme of a
principal subsidiary of the Company under Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules.

The purpose of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme is to, among
others, further establish and improve the incentive mechanism of BYD
Semiconductor, retain and motivate talents, and allow all participants
to focus on the long-term development of BYD Semiconductor and
jointly promote its sustainable development.

There are 36 participants in the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme,
including directors (excluding independent non-executive directors),
senior management and key personnel (excluding supervisors) of BYD
Semiconductor. The Subsidiary Share Option Scheme is tailored to be
a one-off incentive arrangement for the aforesaid 36 participants only.
None of the 36 incentive participants of the Subsidiary Share Option
Scheme is a connected person at the Company level. For details of
the identity and positions of the aforesaid participants, please refer to
the Circular.

The number of shares of BYD Semiconductor in respect of which the
share options involved is 33,088,235 shares (representing 7.353%
of the registered share capital of BYD Semiconductor as at the date
of this report), and the cumulative total number of shares of BYD
Semiconductor involved under the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme
and all other schemes of BYD Semiconductor shall not exceed 10%
of the total share capital of BYD Semiconductor in issue on 16 June
2021, which was the date of approval of the Subsidiary Share Option
Scheme by the extraordinary general meeting of the Company. As
at the date of this report, an aggregate of 33,088,235 share options,
representing all the share options which could be granted under the
Subsidiary Share Option Scheme, were granted to 36 employees
of BYD Semiconductor pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Subsidiary Share Option Scheme at the exercise price of RMB4.54 per
share.
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The validity period of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme shall
commence from the grant date of the share options and end on
the date on which all the share options granted to the incentive
participants have been exercised or cancelled, which shall not
exceed 10 years. The share options granted under the Subsidiary
Share Option Scheme shall be exercised in three tranches, and the
corresponding vesting periods shall be 24 months, 36 months and
48 months respectively from the grant date. As at 30 June 2024,
314,627 share options had been lapsed and cancelled as a result
of the resignation of an employee, and there were 9,826,411 share
options available for exercise under the first exercise period of the
Subsidiary Share Option Scheme, of which 6,218,756 share options
had been exercised and the remaining 3,607,655 share options had
been cancelled as they were not exercised during the exercise period.
On 11 May 2024, the board and shareholders of BYD Semiconductor
have resolved to cancel all share options (i.e. 22,928,295 share
options) granted but have not been exercised in the second and third
exercise period of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed, no share options had been exercised, lapsed or
cancelled during the six months ended 30 June 2024.

For further details of the exercise period, performance appraisal
objectives (as conditions of the exercise of the share options) and the
Subsidiary Share Option Scheme, please refer to the Circular and note
11 to the financial statements in this report.
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SHARE CAPITAL

As of 30 June 2024, the share capital of the Company is as follows:

g
R-ZB-_MFEANA=1TH  ARARWBRAMT :

Number of Approximate

shares in issue percentage (%)

ERITROHE KA D (%)

A Shares AR 1,811,265,855 (Note)iit) 62.26

H Shares HHAZ 1,098,000,000 37.74

Total wmy 2,909,265,855 100.00
Note: Btet -

Of which 3,857,717 A Shares were purchased A Shares which were
recognized as treasury shares held through the designated securities
account for repurchase by way of centralized bidding transactions and
transferred to the designated securities account for the Employee Share
Ownership Plan by ways of non-trade transfer pursuant to the Employee
Share Ownership Plan as detailed above in this interim report. Such
treasury shares were recognized as excluded from the total number of
issued shares entitled to attend and vote on the resolution(s) proposed at
the general meetings and/or A Shares class meetings of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the reporting period, there was no significant investment held,
material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Please refer to note 13 to the financial statements for details of capital
commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Please refer to note 12 to the financial statements for details of
contingent liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Please refer to note 16 to the financial statements for details of events
after the balance sheet date.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
(THE “CODE”)

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to
maintaining and ensuring high standards of corporate governance
practices.

The Company has put in place corporate governance practices to
comply with all the provisions and most of the recommended best
practices of the Code as set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules,
except for the deviation from the code provisions C.2.1 and C.1.6.

Code Provision C.2.1

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

Mr. Wang Chuan-fu is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. The Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management. The Board comprises experienced and high caliber
individuals and meets regularly to discuss issues affecting operations
of the Group. The balance of power and authority is ensured by
the operation of the Board. The Board believes that this structure is
conducive to strong and consistent leadership, enabling the Group
to make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently. The Board
has full confidence in Mr. Wang and believes that his appointment to
the posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is beneficial to the
business development of the Company.

Code Provision C.1.6

Code provision C.1.6 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and non-executive directors should attend general meetings.
Some of the non-executive Directors did not attend the extraordinary
general meeting, the class meeting of holders of A shares and the
class meeting of holders of H shares held on 19 April 2024 due to
other affairs at the relevant time. All of the independent non-executive
directors and non-executive directors attended the annual general
meeting held on 6 June 2024.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED COMPANIES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, each of the Directors has confirmed compliance with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Period.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Mr. Cai Hong-ping has no longer served as an independent non-
executive director of China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (4
BAMZERMD AR AT (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (stock code: 00670) and the SZSE (stock code: 600115))
with effect from 29 April 2024.

Ms. Yu Ling has been appointed as an independent director of
Jiangxi Hongcheng Environment Co., Ltd. (TFRHIRFRMD BRA
7], a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600461)) with effect from 8 April 2024.

Save as disclosed above, there is no information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules during the
reporting period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Reference is made to the circular dated 20 March 2024 of the
Company, regarding the 2024 share repurchase plan and grant of
mandate to the board and its authorized persons to deal with matters
in relation to the repurchase of A Shares of the Company in full
discretion (hereinafter referred to as the “Repurchase”).

Resolutions relating to the Repurchase were approved at the 5th
meeting of the eighth session of the Board and the 3rd meeting of
the eighth session of the supervisory committee of the Company held
on 6 March 2024, and the extraordinary general meeting, the class
meeting of holders of A shares and the class meeting of holders
of H shares held on 19 April 2024, respectively, authorizing the
Company to use its own funds to repurchase its A shares at prices not
exceeding RMB270 per A share, with a total repurchase amount of
RMB400 million, and if the total repurchase amount is not an integer
of RMBO.1 billion due to the prices of the shares, the rounding method
shall be used to calculate the integer of RMBO.1 billion. The period
for repurchasing shares is 12 months from the date of the Company’s
extraordinary general meeting, class meeting of holders of A shares
and class meeting of holders of H shares at which the plan for the
Repurchase was considered and approved. The repurchased shares
shall be used for cancellation to reduce the registered capital.
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The Company announced the next day disclosure returns in relation
to the progress of the Repurchase on 25 April 2024, 26 April 2024
and 13 May 2024, respectively. On 25 April 2024 and 26 April
2024, the Company repurchased a total of 1,877,000 A Shares (the
“Repurchased A Shares”), representing approximately 0.06452% of
the total issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report. The highest and lowest trading prices were RMB219.58 per
A Share and RMB206.62 per A Share, respectively. The total amount
of funds for the Repurchase was approximately RMBO0.4 billion (if the
total repurchase amount is not an integer of RMBO.1 billion due to the
prices of the shares, the rounding method shall be used to calculate
the integer of RMBO.1 billion). The implementation of the plan for the
Repurchase was completed on 26 April 2024. On 13 May 2024, as
confirmed by the Shenzhen branch of China Securities Depository
and Clearing Corporation Limited, all the Repurchased A Shares were
cancelled and the total number of issued A Shares was reduced by
1,877,000 on 10 May 2024.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities (including the treasury shares, as applicable) during
the six months ended 30 June 2024.

THE BOARD’S DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy, which sets out
the approach to the diversity of Board. The Company recognises the
importance of diversity to corporate governance and an effective
Board. The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to
achieve Board diversity, so as to ensure that the Board members
possess appropriate skills, experience and diverse views necessary
for the business of the Company. In determining the Board
composition, the Board and Nomination Committee of the Company
consider a range of diversity elements, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All appointments of the Board will
be made based on merit and objective criteria while taking into full
account the interest of the Board’s diversity.

EEENWE DT

ARBDHM-ZE_MFONA-_+HRB  —FT
FOAZ+ARAR-Z_NEFRAAT=ZA2HAR
BEAROBERNBERERRE ngfﬂﬁ
MAZ+HA —T-WFWMA—+XE AR

D/JJ%A%ﬂx11877ommeEw%mAkﬂx1D
AR ARE 2 BB BT AL0.06452% + %
SRR BAEANRE21958T, 1% HIERZEAEA

R¥206.627T,/ 1% ' BEESBELHAARELET
(AREEREHOEESBREETREN - UKW
BRAAZERELIHESR HE_T-_NFNAZ
+RB KAEEFEEEHRTE - ngfmg
AA+=H EHEELFEZLREEARETCA
WA“Tﬁwv$M@%MAhkPﬁﬁf7fEE
hATHTKREH - BETAREER 1,877,000
Hgo

B EXFIEELE  REBEE ST _WNFA=1HIt

NER AR TtEEHWE AfEEEEE X
BOARBEF LHES (BREEFRGUER))

EEe2nibEBE

ESECRMAZTTIEBE  HPHAEFEZ T
ZHE e ARRRAEFTEXNBZ TLHEEER
REBREGTZEMNEEN  EEEXEZ TR
REEIBAERESEXNEZ LM RN T
i NHEREFERBEARAEHMFAFEED
et BBREEZ B  ARFREZTGLIES
§AEE“*§$AﬁEﬁAﬁ'§ﬁ%EE%§

EEEXBZL  BRETRRMER - Fik X

ERHBEER BELR RERFE - -EFEM
BEZEOURAES RRA WATEERIZBA

B RTOBEMEESLIUbMEE -

33



34

BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBNWEDW

The selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
elements and measurable objectives which will be reviewed regularly.
Such measurable objectives shall include, but be not limited to,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and/or terms of service. The final
decision will be made according to the strengths of the candidate
and his/her contribution that would bring to the Board. Furthermore,
pursuant to code provision B.1.3 of the Code, the Board should
review the implementation and effectiveness of the issuer’s policy on
board diversity on an annual basis. The Nomination Committee has
performed the above duties in terms of selection of candidates and
review of the implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s
diversity policy during the year. Having considered the business
and development needs of the Company, the Nomination Committee
considers that the current Board is sufficiently diversified in terms of
its skills, experience, knowledge, length of service and independence.

It is one of the measurable objectives of the Board to include at least
one female director in the Board. The Board will continue to take
proactive measures to ensure the gender diversity of Board members,
and will emphasise on including gender as one of the factors to
be taken into consideration by the Company for achieving Board
diversity.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

A meeting was convened by the Company’s audit committee of the
Board on 28 August 2024 to review the accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Group and to discuss auditing, internal
control, risk management and financial reporting matters (including
reviewing the financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2024) before recommending them to the Board for approval.

The audit committee has reviewed the results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2024.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the distribution of interim dividend for
the six months ended 30 June 2024 (for the six months ended 30 June
2023: Nil).
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS

As at 30 June 2024, the interests and short positions of each of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”))
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests which he is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (for this purpose, the
relevant provisions of the SFO will be interpreted as if they applied to
the supervisors) were as follows:

A shares of RMB1.00 each

EEENWE DT

BEE -

RZE-WEAA=+H KAAFEE E=ZRE
BITBABEERARE I LB (EERE
PEEBIEST1ERF RAEGRN([FHRAE %)
EXVED MR, - RN REFTHEBREES K
GO EXVRE7RSD B AME AR R LE B
RATHE R AR (BIERIEESF R EENE FE
NEEIERAEANER) REESRAEK
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BHEEIMRAUN LT ARERETESRHNIZAE
SFRIZBME A AR RE B ATE S (Fhitt B &9
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)T

BREEARY1.00THAR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in total
issued share
capital™® (%)

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

in total issued
A shares™® (%)

Number of FREME BT FREEE BT
A shares ARREE K BAAEEEN
Name & ABREE BMAOBILLTH (%) BMAOEDETH(%)
Wang Chuan-fu (Director and President) ~ E{#1g (EHF4EE) 513,623,850 (L) 28.36 17.65
(Note 1)
(HiaE1)
Lv Xiang-yang (Director) =G (ESE) 394,378,222 (L) 21.77 13.56
(Note 2)
(Htat2)
Xia Zuo-quan (Director) BEh2(ES) 82,635,607 (L) 4.56 2.84
Zhu Ai-yun (Supervisor) KER(ESE) 615,965 (L) 0.03 0.02
(L) = Long Position (L) -4 &
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Notes:

1. The 513,623,850 A shares did not include the 3,727,700 A shares
held by Mr. Wang in No.1 Assets Management Plan through E
Fund BYD.

2. Of the 394,378,222 A shares, 239,228,620 A shares were held by

Mr. Lv in his personal capacity and 155,149,602 A shares were
held by Youngy Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. (RiEEE
mREBEABMRAT) (“Youngy Investment”, formerly known as
Guangzhou Youngy Management & Investment Group Company
Limited (BB EEREBBRAF)). Youngy Investment
was in turn held by Mr. Lv and his spouse as to 89.5% and 10.5%
of equity interests, respectively. Mr. Lv was therefore deemed to
be interested in the 155,149,602 A shares under the SFO.

H shares of RMB1.00 each

Btet -

1. 1£7%513,623,850 AR 2/ + TR ETHLAB
WY EEEN RIEH1NEETETEEE
793,727,700 AR 17 o

2. 1£5%394,378,222[8 A% 2 + 239,228,620% A

A% R = S A LARELA & 5458 &% 155,149,602 A
heERErERERARAR((RHERE] -
MEARNREREEBEEBRATIES -
AERERELERNERBESREE89.5%
F10.5%0H - AR EESFREED - 3
SR BT Z 155,149,602 08 AR & # &

Eo

R AR%1.00THIHR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

total issued in total issued
H shares (%) share capital (%)
Number of BEREMD BT EREME BT
H shares HER & BABEEL
Name ®E HER & B BRE D (%) B E D (%)
Wang Chuan-fu (Director and President) E{E1g(EEH4AE) 1,000,000 (L) 0.09 0.03
Xia Zuo-quan (Director) BEE2(ES) 500,000 (L) 0.05 0.02
(Note)
(Hat)
(L) — Long Position (L) -4 &
Note: Btat

Of the 500,000 H shares, 195,000 H shares were held by Mr. Xia as a
beneficial owner and 305,000 H shares were held by Sign Investments
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. Xia.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2024, none of the Directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be (a) recorded in
the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO; or (b) notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.

500,000 Hk 2 - BERELEZHEEATH
FFE195,000kHK - MABLEEZEHEARSIgn
Investments Limited 8143 5 305,000% HA% °

BEdiEEEN RZZ-WERA=+H  #E
ARREE BEERRSTHRAERARFHEME
AIHREOEE (EE R & 5 R BB &G B XVER) 1 A
o~ HERD K EEE T EEEDSORB M A (a)L
BRARBIRER S KB G E362&F BN E R
MR ROBBELETARNERFETEFIINEE
STRIZBFHE AR R REEBN -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE INTERESTS

As at 30 June 2024, to the knowledge of the Directors of the Company
based on the disclosure of interests made by relevant persons on the
HKEXnews website, the following persons (other than the Directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which were required to be disclosed to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or were required to be entered in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

1. A shares of RMB1.00 each

EEENWE DT

BEATHNERENRR

RZZE-_MENA=ZTH  RAAREEHANRE
A TR AR SAMELNERER) - LT
ALT(PBEARRIEE  BEEEEaTHRABER
RNR B RAR B D R B IR IR B 5 R B S 155
FEXVEBE2 R 3D E A M AR T) K B SR T FE ok
RIEFES NS IEDE336EHARRTFENERL
e ERSAR

1 SREEARE1.00THAR

Approximate

Approximate percentage of

percentage of shareholding

shareholding in in total issued

total issued share capital™®”

A shares™®© " (%) (%)

Number of BHREBMACBT BREME BT

A shares ARREEH BB

Name =18 AREE #MABDLLTE(%) BT DT (%)

Youngy Investment (Note 2) RIS & (Hit2) 155,149,602 (L) 8.57 5.33
(L) = Long Position (L) -2 &

Notes: Btat -

Youngy Investment is owned by Mr. Lv Xiang-yang, a non-executive
Director of the Company, as to 89.5%. Mr. Lv is therefore deemed to be
interested in the 155,149,602 A shares held by Youngy Investment under
the SFO.

BIERERARAFNTES B M5 5% EEH89.5%E
oo Bt IRIBEFRERE - BEERERREE
A5 69155,149,6020F AR B 25 -
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LeEERBBRAR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWERDMN

2, H shares of RMB1.00 each 2. BREEARYE1.00THHE
Approximate
Approximate percentage of
percentage of shareholding
shareholding in total
in total issued issued share
H shares (%) capital (%)
Number of BREMERT BREMERT
H shares HiR B8 1 IR EEEN

Name 8 HR#E BABDL(%) B E 2 H (%)

Berkshire Hathaway Inc. (Note 1) Berkshire Hathaway Inc. (#77#1) 65,853,142 (L) 5.99 2.26

Berkshire Hathaway Energy (Note 1) Berkshire Hathaway Energy (#7:#1) 65,853,142 (L) 5.99 2.26

Western Capital Group LLC (Note 1)~ Western Capital Group LLC (#77#1) 65,853,142 (L) 5.99 2.26

BlackRock, Inc. (Note 2) BlackRock, Inc. (#/:#2) 69,843,967 (L) 6.36 2.40

429,500 (S) 0.04 0.02

(L) = Long Position (L) -4 &

Notes: Bt -

1. According to the disclosure of interests notice filed on 24 June 1. BER-ZZ_NFEFNAZTHOHRERD
2024, each of Berkshire Hathaway Inc. and Berkshire Hathaway % # 7 i MBerkshire Hathaway Inc. &
Energy Company (formerly known as MidAmerican Energy Berkshire Hathaway Energy Company(R%
Holdings Company) is deemed to be interested in 65,853,142 AMidAmerican Energy Holdings Company)
H Shares (L) through 65,853,142 H Shares directly held by its AREEABRAREENARIREERER
indirectly controlled corporation and wholly-owned corporation, AlWestern Capital Group LLCATERFE R
Western Capital Group LLC, respectively. 65,853,142%HA% + 765,853, 142f& HAR (L) #

R o
2. The interests of BlackRock, Inc. were held through its various 2. BlackRock, Inc.f) iz /b i il 2 & 12 6l A 7 FF

controlled corporations, and of which 7,500 long positions were
cash settled unlisted derivatives, and 424,500 short positions were
cash settled unlisted derivatives.

The total issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2024 was
RMB2,909,265,855, divided into 1,811,265,855 A shares (including
3,857,717 treasury shares) of RMB1.00 each and 1,098,000,000 H
shares of RMB1.00 each, all fully paid up.

B ER7 500 R AREHEEIELEMITAET
H o N424 500B0K B RIRSEEIFLEWITET
Ho

S

RZZE-WEXNA=Z+H  ARBDEITRALE
A AR#2909,265,8557T © 7 41,811,265,8550%
SERmEARE1.00THAK(B153,857, 717 E
T /%) %1,098,000,0000% & A& E{E A R #1.007THIH
B 2HAEERER -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

30 June 2024
—E-MFERA=1H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

30 June 31 December

2024 2023
—EmEF ZE=F
AA=+A +-A=+-8
Note (Unaudited) (Audited)
k=3 (REE) (EFEED
Assets BE
Current assets TMENVEE
Monetary funds EES 53,053,301 109,094,408
Purchases of financial assets under resale EARECREE
agreements 1,760,305 -
Financial assets held for trading RESUEEREE 17,388,054 9,562,550
Trade receivables FEHBR TR 7 71,814,516 61,866,019
Receivables financing FEU G IERE 6,292,399 5,564,924
Other receivables H b MR 3,063,158 2,757,912
Prepayments TR FRIB 5,030,675 2,215,413
Inventories 7E 112,753,013 87,676,748
Contract assets aREE 2,395,091 2,660,319
Long-term receivables due within one year —F R EIHIA R HAFE YLK 9,340,887 7,508,351
Other current assets HEM R EE 15,540,211 13,214,802
Total current assets MENEESE 298,431,610 302,121,446
Non-current assets EREEE
Long-term receivables = EAFE UK 8,084,736 8,238,190
Long-term equity investments REAREIRE 18,542,811 17,647,212
Other equity instrument investments HipiEes THIEE 6,421,882 5,327,283
Other non-current financial assets HEMIERESRERE 2,814,097 2,696,374
Investment properties KEMEHE 61,081 82,510
Fixed assets BEE&E 230,030,358 230,903,820
Construction in progress EEIR 43,275,332 34,726,196
Right-of-use assets ERREEE 10,168,909 9,678,956
Intangible assets EEE 36,269,466 37,236,261
Development expenditures sz 832,937 541,000
Goodwill BES 4,427,571 4,427 571
Long-term deferred expenditures RHF#ESR 5,265,659 4,062,529
Deferred tax assets IRIEFTISTHE E 6,860,746 6,584,422
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 14,757,515 15,273,900
Total non-current assets FREBEEST 387,813,100 377,426,224
Total assets BEEG 686,244,710 679,547,670

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial — BH I ERERM i ARHERENAR LD
statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

30 June 2024
—E-NFESNA=TH
RMB'000 AR®TIT

30 June 31 December
2024 2023
—ZT-E —T-=fF
AA=+H +=—A=+—H
Note (Unaudited) (Audited)
k=3 (REE) (EFEED
Liabilities =V
Current liabilities EAE
Short-term borrowings EHAE 10,048,017 18,323,216
Financial liabilities held for trading RPMESRBE - 7,713
Bills payables ANES 8 2,259,388 4,053,314
Trade payables FERTERFR 9 207,517,115 194,429,817
Contract liabilities aRAE 36,755,236 34,698,510
Employee benefits payables JRE A<F B8k T 37 B 18,993,094 17,138,836
Tax payables ERBE 5,900,956 7,852,324
Other payables HAth FET 3R 157,496,850 164,972,849
Provision TEETBE 2,942,627 2,620,325
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FREEMERB AR 8,059,790 7,740,491
Other current liabilities HivmenaE 2,769,730 1,829,276
Total current liabilities mEBEEE 452,742,803 453,666,671
Non-current liabilities ERBIAE
Long-term borrowings RHfE 11,305,318 11,975,139
Lease liabilities HEAE 9,357,356 8,847,186
Deferred tax liabilities REFSH AR 3,269,829 3,950,836
Other non-current liabilities HitnIEmE B & 54,958,326 50,645,725
Total non-current liabilities FRBEESF 78,890,829 75,418,886
Total liabilities afEast 531,633,632 529,085,557

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements

1 P B 765 S 3% PI e A AN B 5 S R O AL BE 2>
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

30 June 2024
—E-MFERA=1H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

30 June 31 December

2024 2023
—E-MEF —Eo=F
ANA=+H +=-A=+—H
Note (Unaudited) (Audited)
Mtat (REE) Cc&ay)
Shareholders’ equity RRER
Shareholders’ equity IR
Share capital % A< 10 2,909,266 2,911,143
Capital reserve BN 61,913,790 62,041,774
Less: Treasury shares B ETERR 1,266,944 1,266,944
Other comprehensive income HEMARE e 88,224 603,663
Special reserve HIEEHE 25,795 22,370
Surplus reserve BHNTE 7,374,087 7,374,087
Undistributed profit Ko Be ) 71,742,986 67,123,972

Total shareholders’ equity attributable to
the parent company

BRNEATRRRRSA

142,787,204 138,810,065

Non-controlling interests DA R 11,823,874 11,652,048
Total shareholders’ equity RS EET 154,611,078 150,462,113

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

BEMBR S AT

686,244,710 679,547,670

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements

The financial statement was signed by the following persons:

Legal representative:
Wang Chuan-fu
VEEMFA -

TER

Chief Financial Officer:
Zhou Ya-lin
ETEQHIEEEA -
TR

18 B B 75 S 3R P R A AN B TS SR O ALK RE 2

MEHERAUTALERSE

Head of Accounting Department:
Liu Hui

BEHIEAEA

2=
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Consolidated Income Statement

& O R H &

Six months ended 30 June 2024
BE-_ZT-_NFNA=+HIE/NEAHE
RMB'000 AREFIT

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2024 2023
BE-E-NF BE_T_=F
AB=tHLE SNA=t+HIE
~ME A HE 7~ 8 A EAf
Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Kz (k& &3 (CREsE:T)
L Operating revenue - BEWRA 4 301,126,713 260,124,143
Less: Operating costs W EERAR 4 240,859,982 212,451,556
Tax and surcharge & R BT o 5,294,231 4,648,323
Selling expenses HEEH 14,316,951 10,838,054
Administrative expenses EREH 7,694,969 6,818,637
Research and development expenses & A 19,620,756 13,834,648
Finance expenses BsER 69,006 (1,102,954)
Including: Interest expenses Heh: FISER 1,116,060 977,473
Interest income FEMA 1,192,620 1,168,146
Add: Other income e Etblas 4,824,359 1,857,641
Investment gain wE M 1,209,337 590,770
Including: Investment gains Hep $E N2 0%
in associates and B1R & Was
joint ventures 913,659 597,938
Loss on derecognition of B AT ER 2R
financial assets measured BEKRIERIER
at amortised cost - -
Gains from changes in fair value AREBEEEH NG 347,721 86,896
Impairment losses on credit ERRERERX (789,516) (610,523)
Impairment losses on asset BEMERE (1,531,034) (905,154)
Gains/(losses) from disposal of assets EERE WS (BX) (8,409) 75,774
Il.  Operating profit = EERE 17,323,276 13,731,283
Add: Non-operating income s ERINEA 476,512 305,965
Less: Non-operating expenses W EEIN T 571,650 637,328
lll.  Total profit = R 4L 17,228,138 13,399,920
Less: Income tax expenses o TS E A 5 3,114,922 1,960,201
IV.  Net profit N SRR 14,113,216 11,439,719

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements

18 PI B 765 S 3% PI e A AN B 75 S R O ALK E 20
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Consolidated Income Statement
& BRI E &R

Six months ended 30 June 2024
HE-ZE-_WNFENA=1+8I1/7E AP HHE
RMB'000 AREFIT

For the For the

six months six months
ended ended

30 June 30 June
2024 2023

BE-T-NF HE_T_=F
AA=t+HILE ASA=+ABLE

~ME A HE NGB

Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Hret (REEE) (REE &R

V. Classified by continuity of operation
Net profit from continuing operations

T REEHEMSE
FECRFENHE 14,113,216 11,439,719

VI. Classified by ownership
Net profit attributable to shareholders of
the parent company

N BRFEEEBIE
BERIRRMEEN
EFIE 13,631,257 10,954,145

Non-controlling interests

LHRRER 481,959 485574

VIl.  Earnings per share (RMB/share)

. BREE:RK)

Basic earnings per share EARGRIE 6 4.68 3.77
Diluted earnings per share mERERKE 6 4.68 3.77

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial  BH I EREM i ARMERENAR LD

statements
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Consolidated Income Statement

& O R H &

Six months ended 30 June 2024
HE_ZT-_NEFNA=Z+HINEAERE
RMB'000 AREFIT

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2024 2023
HE-Z-_ME HE-T-=F
AA=THILE ANA=THIE
M8 A H R 7~ 8 A EAf
Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Mz (R &) (CREsE:T)
VIIl.  Other comprehensive income/(loss) ﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁAllﬁl?n‘t/ (B518) (511,977) 450,683
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that RENBERENEMSE
cannot be reclassified to profit or loss Hﬁlﬁn/ &)
Changes in fair value of other equity HtgEmTAREAREBEZS
instrument investments (621,795) 496,027
Income tax impact Fristis 160,296 (122,515)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that BESIEEBRNEMEGS
will be reclassified to profit or loss Wi,/ (EE)
Exchange difference on foreign currency SNESRRITE AT
translation (32,475) 29,382
Changes in fair value of receivables financing [EUGRIERE A R BEEE (1,758) 41,092
Provision for credit impairment of receivables JEURIERLE 5 R EEE
financing - (2,120)
Reserve for cash flow hedge Ben=EEHEHE (19,707) -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) BER DR R E A ?
attributable to non-controlling interests, s/ (BB RF % FE
net of tax 3,462 8,817
IX. Total comprehensive income REWBBE 13,601,239 11,890,402
Among which: Hrp
Total comprehensive income FENERARENGS W
attributable to shareholders of Fk:A]
the parent company 13,115,818 11,396,011
Total comprehensive income FEROEREMGE N EEE
attributable to non-controlling interests 485,421 494,391

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements

1 P B 765 S 3% PI B A AN B 5 S R O ALK E 2>
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHBEERER

Six months ended 30 June 2024
BE-_ZE-_NFA=+HIE/NEA M
RMB'000 AREFIT

For the For the

six months six months
ended ended

30 June 30 June
2024 2023

BE-T-NF HE_T_=F
AA=t+HILE ASA=+ABLE

A~ ME A B NGB

Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Hret (REEzT) (REEER

L. Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from sales of goods and
provision of services
Tax rebates received
Cash received from other activities relating to
operations

- REZTBHELENRSHKE:
HERM - RERBEEINE S
297,083,766 251,313,806
WEEHERE 6,797,295 7,798,280
WE A Eg L EBERNIE S
7,132,449 11,038,425

Sub-total of cash inflows from operating BEEHREMANG

activities 311,013,510 270,150,511
Cash paid for goods and services REWm BEXREIANRSE 217,491,368 125,042,780
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees TRGEBIUARABRTIZHHRE 50,466,622 37,357,054
Cash paid for various types of taxes TROBERE 19,325,411 14,055,372

Cash paid for other activities relating to
operations

X EMEELEHRANRS
9,551,799 11,724,128

Sub-total of cash outflows from operating BEEHR ML/
activities 296,835,200 188,179,334
Net cash flow from operating activities KEEBEENRESREFE 14,178,310 81,971,177

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial  BH B EREM EARMERENAR LD

statements
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEBEETRER

Six months ended 30 June 2024
BE-_ZT-_NFNA=+HIE/NEAHE
RMB'000 AREFIT

For the For the

six months six months
ended ended

30 June 30 June
2024 2023

BE-T-NF HE_T_=F
AA=t+HILE ASA=+ABLE

A~ ME A B NGB

Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Hret (REEzT) (REEER

Il.  Cash flows from investing activities: = REZHELENRERE:

Cash received from disposal of investments WEIRE R HRE 16,500 -
Cash received from disposals of joint ventures RESLSAHERRMKENES

or associates 13,898 72,968
Cash received from gains in investment BEEEREWE HES 351,307 154,379
Net cash received from disposals of BEFRARAMEESM R

subsidiaries and other operating entities e 58 2,497 73,840
Net cash received from disposals of fixed REETEE BEEENEME

assets, intangible assets and other long- HIEE B /R & 55

term assets 310,810 241,715
Cash received from other activities relating to WEE R E RS EENRE

investments 470,000 18,467,236
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing BEEGRS TN

activities 1,165,012 19,010,138
Cash paid for purchase and construction of BRETEE BVEENHMOE

fixed assets, intangible assets and other HEELNHES

long-term assets 47,225,661 65,936,866
Cash paid for investments RETAMNES 1,753,172 960,274
Cash paid for other activities relating to TREMEREEFHEMNE S

investments 8,060,254 10,649,269
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing BEESRSTL/NGT

activities 57,039,087 77,546,409
Net cash flows used in investing activities BEEDFERANRESREFE (55,874,075) (58,536,271)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial  BH B EREM EARMERENAR LD
statements
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ZERCNFERHRE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEERER

Six months ended 30 June 2024

BE_ZT-_NFNA=Z+HINEAEE
RMB'000 AR®TFT
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2024 2023
HE-Z-_ME HE-T-=F
AA=THILE ANA=tTHIE
M8 A H R 7~ 8 A EAf
Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Kz (REEELT) (RE&EET)
ll.  Cash flows from financing activities: = BETHELNEESRE:
Cash received from capital injection R EWREI MRS 98,000 -
Cash received from borrowings BEERKEINES 13,260,782 17,114,038
Cash received relating to other financing WHEEMEEEEHEENERS
activities - 28,233
Sub-total of cash inflows from financing SEEHRSMANET
activities 13,358,782 17,142,271
Cash paid for repayment of debts BREBIIHNRSE 23,687,916 11,667,955
Cash payments for distribution of dividends, DEREH] - FESE NSRS TE
profits or interest expenses He 333,758 853,406
Cash paid relating to other financing activities SNEMEEEEHEBNRS 1,695,532 570,698
Sub-total of cash outflows from financing SEEHRS ML DT
activities 25,717,206 13,092,059
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing EEEHEL/(FR)NEERE
activities et (12,358,424) 4,050,212
IV.  Effect of foreign exchange rate changes M. EXSHHRERRSEEUN
on cash and cash equivalents 7 (230,984) 560,785
V.  Netincrease/(decrease)incashandcash # - BERBEZEY TN (RD)E
equivalents (54,285,173) 28,045,903
Add: balance of cash and cash equivalents m: BRE RIReERYHRE
at the beginning of the period 108,511,745 51,182,457
VI.  Balance of cash and cash equivalents A BRBRERBEEENHE
at the end of the period 54,226,572 79,228,360

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements

1R P B 765 S 3R PI B A AN B 75 S R O ALK BE 20
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BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAR

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% R 3% MY &%

30 June 2024

— = —

=

mMERA=+H

RMB'000 AR®TIT

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

BYD Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint stock limited
company registered in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The Company’s H shares have been listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 31 July 2002. The
registered office of the Company is located at Yan An Road,
Kuichong, Dapeng District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province,
the PRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
— Basic Standard” issued by the Ministry of Finance and
the specific accounting standards, application guidelines,
interpretations and other relevant regulations issued and
revised thereafter (collectively known as the “ASBE”). In
addition, relevant financial information as required under the
“Compilation Rules for Information Disclosures by Companies
Offering Securities to the Public No. 15 = General Provisions
on Financial Reports” has been disclosed in the financial
statements.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis. As at 30 June 2024, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB154,311,193,000. In view of such circumstances, the
management of the Company has given consideration to the
future liquidity and financial resources available to the Group,
which mainly include the net cash flows generated from the
Group’s operating activities and sufficient financial credit
facilities, in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern, and will
not have any going concern issue as a result of the shortage of
working capital. Therefore, the management of the Company
is of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

REEHR
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Notes to Financial Statements

SEGMENT REPORTING
Operating segment

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services. The
Group currently has two reportable segments as follows:

a) the mobile handset components, assembly service and
other products segment comprises the manufacture
and sale of mobile handset components such as
housings and electronic components and the provision
of assembly services;

b) the automobiles and related products and other
products segment comprises the manufacture and sale
of automobiles and auto-related molds and components
and automobile leasing and after sales services,
automobile power batteries, lithium-ion batteries,
photovoltaic products and iron battery products, rail
transport and its related business.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value, finance costs
(excluding interest expenses on lease liabilities and exchange
gains or losses), non-operating income, other income, losses
on disposal of assets, non- operating expenses, investment
income (excluding investment income from associates and joint
ventures), income from sales of properties, the corresponding
costs and tax expenses, as well as administrative expenses
incurred by the Company as the Group’s headquarter are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, goodwill, financial
assets held for trading, other equity instrument investments,
other non-current financial assets, investment properties and
assets occupied by the Company as the Group’s headquarter
as these assets are managed on a group basis.

B %5 ¥R R B &E

30 June 2024
—E-NENA=1H
RMB'000 AR#TIT
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3.

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Operating segment (continued)

Segment liabilities exclude deferred income tax liabilities, tax
payable, other current liabilities, other non-current liabilities,
short-term borrowings, long-term borrowings, bonds payable,
interest payable and dividends payable in other payables,

/]-J\ iﬁ (IIE)
& 558 (8)
DHEBEIBRELEMEHEARE  EBIH
B Hpn@afl Ht3ERasE udf

B REMER - BAES - EMEM KT
BB R SN BN - X B SRR BN

financial liabilities held for trading and liabilities assumed by RAAREREBBIMBENEE  REARL
the Company as the Group’s headquarter as these liabilities RELBEYHRAEEG—EE o
are managed on a group basis.
Transfer pricing in operating segments is determined with KEDIENEBLER - RREE D EHE
reference to the agreed price among operating segments. Tﬁ%a%%f‘ﬁ%%ﬂm °
Mobile
handset
components, Automobiles
assembly andrelated  Adjustments
serviceand  products and and
other products  other products eliminations Total
FHHBE RE -
For the six months ended 30 June 2024 HE-Z-MEXA=1A B%Rk ARERBER
(Unaudited) EAERHE(REE) HitER REMER BENEH &t
Revenue from external trading #IRHRA 72,778,443 228,316,903 31,367 301,126,713
Revenue from inter-segment trading AHERHHA 6,619,862 1,717,729 (8,337,591) =
Total At 79,398,305 230,034,632 (8,306,224) 301,126,713
Income from investment in joint ventures and associates ¥4 & Fi & b2 MR E = 913,659 = 913,659
Depreciation and amortization TERESR 3,099,702 28,584,509 = 31,684,211
Total profit MESE 1,397,057 12,827,989 3,003,092 17,228,138
Income tax expense MERER 125,494 2,989,428 = 3,114,922
Capital expenditure ERiT 2,772,134 37,198,077 = 39,970,211
As of 30 June 2024 (Unaudited) BE-B-MEXRA=TH
(REH)
Total assets 3 84,503,178 586,367,115 15374417 686,244,710
Total liabilities RfEEE 37,153,902 448,568,869 45,910,861 531,633,632
Other disclosures H#E
Long-term equity investments in joint ventures HEENBetENRIRERE
and associates - 18,542,811 - 18,542,811
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30 June 2024
—ECFERNA=TH
RMB'000 AR#TIT

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 3. ZEEHEE
Operating segment (continued) &I (E)
Mobile
handset
components, Automobiles
assembly and related Adjustments
serviceand  products and and
other products  other products eliminations Total
FHEE AE -
For the six months ended 30 June 2023 BZ-Z--£XAZ1H BER  TEREER
(Unaudited) EAERHE(REET) EfhER REMER HEMEE At
Revenue from external trading HIZHHWA 51,090,165 208,823,603 210,375 260,124,143
Revenue from inter-segment trading AHEZHRA 5,248 582 2,924,979 (8,173561) -
Total CH 56,338,747 211,748,582 (7,963,186) 260,124,143
Income from investment in joint ventures and associates & 2FE 2 0 F MR AR - 507,938 - 597,938
Depreciation and amortization RERESH 1,561,892 16,563,268 - 18,125,160
Total profit(losses) B/ (BR)E% 1,425,768 12,355,046 (380,894) 13,399,920
Income tax expense FEHER 178,588 1781613 - 1,960,201
Capital expenditure EAMSH 2,078,439 81,517,697 - 83,596,136
As of 30 June 2023 (Unaudited) HE-E--EXRA=tH
(REE&E)

Total assets BESE 62,118,380 518,685,011 10,330,016 591,133,407
Total liabilities AELE 23443124 399,274,267 38014860 460,732,251
Other disclosures %

Long-term equity investments in joint
ventures and associates

HeENRELRORARERE
- 16,473,886 - 16,473,886
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3. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 3 DHBEGE
Other information HMEE
Geographical information Wl E 8
Operating revenue EEIA
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2024 2023
BZE HE
—E-IF ZE=F
AA=+THLE ASA=T+HIE
7B A HA R 7N fE A HAR
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&EH) CREgERD
PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and PE(BIESRAHE)
Taiwan) 211,180,522 195,714,569
Overseas B 89,946,191 64,409,574
Total a5t 301,126,713 260,124,143

Revenue from external transactions is attributed to the location
of customers.

IR ZWABRBREFPMERE -

Total non-current assets IEREEELREE
30 June 31 December
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=4F
AA=+H +=ZA=+—8H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RECHFS) (k2851

PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and PE(RIESREAHE)

Taiwan) 351,067,248 343,398,654
Overseas RH 8,136,820 6,753,730
Total & 359,204,068 350,152,384

Non-current assets exclude goodwill, other equity instrument
investments, other non-current financial assets, long-term
receivables and deferred income tax assets attributed to the
region where the assets are located.

FERBDEELZEEMBRIS - TR
e HEETARE  HEtERDER
BE  REBKSFANELEMEREE -



SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
Other information (continued)
Information about major customers

For the six months ended 30 June 2024, operating revenue
of RMB41,683,152,000 (for the six months ended 30 June
2023: RMB27,246,971,000) was derived from sales to a single

customer.

REVENUE AND COST OF OPERATING

Interim Report 2024
—E_MERHRE

Notes to Financial Statements

B % ¥R AR M RE

30 June 2024

—E-MFERA=1H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

3. ZEHEGE
Ht 5 8 ()
TEEFEE

BHE-_Z-_MEXA=+HI~EAL MK -
LEWNAARBEAL1,683,152F L(BE_Z
—=ZFXAZTHLEANEASHME ARE

27,246 971 F ) BEE—HEZF A -

4. ERBRARKE

For the six months ended

For the six months ended

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
BE-Z-MEAA=TAHL BE-Z-=FX A=tAL
~EABE N {E A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REE) (RIEEE)
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
KA BA WA A
Revenue from principal operations 294,766,371 236,305,988 254,744,317 208,184,122
Other operating revenue 6,360,342 4,553,994 5,379,826 4,267,434
Total 301,126,713 240,859,982 260,124,143 212,451,556
Operating revenue is as follows: EEWATIRAT
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
BZz H=E
—ENEF =
AA=t+HIE NA=+HIE
N8 A # S E R
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(R&&EH) (REEEED
Revenue from contracts with customers WMEE 2 EEREERAKRA
Sales of goods and construction services HEEmEEERS 296,886,000 258,701,798
Rendering of services TR AR TS 4,098,822 1,266,532
300,984,822 259,968,330
Rental income HEWA 141,891 155,813
Total A& 301,126,713 260,124,143
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4. REVENUE AND COST OF OPERATING EE LN NE )
(CONTINUED)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers is as HEPZEEREEMNEZRAD BB
follows: T~
Mobile
handset
components,  Automobiles
assembly and related
serviceand  products, and
other products  other products Others Total
FHREBE- RE-
January to June 2024 (Unaudited) ECME-BEXRARESH) AER  RERHER
Reportable segments REHD HER REMER Hit &t
Type of product Engn
Sales of goods and construction services HEBmMEERE 72,731,758 224,123,687 30,555 295,886,000
Rendering of services LR 25,059 4,073,763 = 4,098,822
Total =HI 72,756,817 228,197,450 30,555 300,984,822
Place of operation LR
PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) HEREFREHE) 19,054,624 192,009,530 30,555 211,094,709
Overseas B 53,702,193 36,187,920 - 89,890,113
Total =i 72,756,817 228,197,450 30,555 300,984,822
Timing of goods transferred B RNER
Atapointintime ER-BYEE 72,750,977 226,770,721 30,555 299,552,253
Over time EE-FRNEE 5,840 1,426,729 = 1,432,569
Total At 72,756,817 228,197,450 30,555 300,984,822
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REVENUE AND COST OF OPERATING

(CONTINUED)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers is as

30 June 2024

—ECFERNA=TH

RMB'000 AR#TIT

&R AR ()

BEFZHAARELNLERERADBIFRN

follows (continued): T -
Mobile
handset
components, Automobiles
assembly and related
serviceand  products, and
other products  other products Others Total
FHEH - e
January to June 2023 (Unaudited) “EC=F-ERA(REEH) BER  TEREER
Reportable segments HEHH AftEm REMER Eth Bt
Type of product Engn
Sales of goods and construction services HERmRRERE 51,040,237 207451667 209894 258,701,798
Rendering of services AR 22,234 1,244,298 - 1,266,532
Total = 51,062,471 208,695,965 209,894 259,968,330
Place of operation LR
PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) HEREFREHE) 13,659,142 181,706,895 209,894 195,575,931
Overseas B 37,403,329 26,989,070 - 64,392,399
Total =i 51,062,471 208,695,965 209,894 259,968,330
Timing of goods transferred R
Atapointintime TE-KHEZ 51,053,339 207,560,428 209,894 258,823,661
Over time EE-FRRNEE 9,132 1,135,537 - 1,144,669
Total = 51,062,471 208,695,965 209,894 259,968,330
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4, REVENUE AND COST OF OPERATING
(CONTINUED)

Disaggregation of cost from contracts with customers in the

&R AR ()

AHMEEFZEARELENEERADBRE

current period is as follows: B
Mobile
handset
components,  Automobiles
assembly and related
service products,
and other and other
products products Others Total
FHRIBE- RE -
A%k  RERHER
Reportable segments BEDH HiER REMER Hit CH
Type of product miaE
Sales of goods and construction services HERRRBERSE 67,123,631 171,330,802 27,340 238,481,773
Rendering of services LR 21,922 2,299,951 = 2,321,873
Total = 67,145,553 173,630,753 27,340 240,803,646
Place of operation LERE
PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) HE(REBRENE) 17,726,456 148,807,346 271,340 166,561,142
Overseas ) 49,419,097 24,823,407 = 74,242,504
Total = 67,145,553 173,630,753 27,340 240,803,646
Timing of goods transferred ERE Bl G
Ata point n time EE-KHEE 67,140,265 172,621,554 27,340 239,789,159
Over time EE-KRMEE 5,268 1,009,199 = 1,014,487
Total Rt 67,145,553 173,630,753 27,340 240,803,646
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REVENUE AND COST OF OPERATING
(CONTINUED)

Revenue of recognition in the current period included in the

30 June 2024

—E-MFERA=1H
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&R AR ()

EHRRNEREARBERVEEEES

opening carrying amounts under contract liability is as follows: KA
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2024 2023
Bz HZE
“EmE i ——g
ANA=t+HL NA=ZTHIE
ANEAHE 71 A B
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEET) (CREEEET)
Sales of goods tHE B 27,064,838 28,413,257
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4. REVENUE AND COST OF OPERATING 4 EBEWARKE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is REBEBHRBGIEBOEZNOT

summarised below:

Time of fulfilling Type of
performance Important Committed refunds ~ warranty and
obligations payment terms Nature of goods transferred Principal ornot  to customers related obligations
AENESREE RANEERE
BOEASHNEE  EZOXNER AHEEERNEE REATEEMA LEFHE SURRBSH
Sales of goods Time of delivery Advance/payment Sales of automobiles, related Yes il Assurance-type
and acceptance by~ upon delivery products, mobile handset warranty
customers components, assembly service
and other products
HEEm RHEZPERR  Eh/HEER IEHENE EREER 7 E RERER

FHBY  ARRAtER

Rendering of services Term of serviceftime ~ Service progress Rendering of maintenance, Yes il Nil
of delivery payment/payment transportation, platform and

upon completion of  technological services

services
iR BBEE/20%  BBERRG/RE  TEREEE BE TARK 7 s i

TR Rittiis
Construction services Term of service Progress payment Construction of rail fransport Yes Nil Assurance-type

infrastructure warranty

BERH TR T LERUR HERERE 7 E RERER
As at 30 June 2024, the major contracted obligations that RZZEZWEARA=+H TENEFEA
have not been fulfilled or not yet fulfilled are expected to be B BHRETHHARBITTENBNES

recognized as revenue within one year. TEET P IAARTER BN ©
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5- MEHREH

For the For the

six months six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2024 2023

BZE HE

—E-MEF —EC=F

ANA=t+HILE NA=Zt+HEIE

NE A HE 7~ & A HAf

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEE) CREgEED

Current income tax expenses EHIMEHRER 3,911,959 3,008,479
Deferred income tax expenses BERSHER (797,037) (1,048,278)
Total &t 3,114,922 1,960,201
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5. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 5- FMFEHERGE)
The reconciliation between income tax expenses and total FrisiEREFNEAENBEERIIRET ¢

profit is as follows:

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2024 2023
e HE
—E-E T4
AA=+HIE ASNAZ+AHL
AE A EE 7~ 1E A A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REET) (REEFEED
Total profit bR 17,228,138 13,399,920
Income tax at the statutory tax rate (Note) ?ﬁiﬁiﬁ¥§+§ BIFT1S 8L ( ?) 4,307,034 3,349,980
Effect of different tax rates applicable to NEEA TR R R
subsidiaries (2,019,325) (1,024,471)
Profit or loss attributable to joint ventures and BB R & & EMEE D EMIBLR
associates (227,780) (146,874)
Tax impact of non-deductible cost, expenses NAE[EHIEIAA « & BB RH
and losses T 184,082 189,501
Effect on deductible temporary differences ~ ANEIRHERIELFTEHREERN AT
or deductible losses for which deferred tax ~ 1E 14 2= B /)52 2 s AT K40
assets are not recognized for the period EBRENEE 3,884,561 1,545,087
Effect of use of deductible losses on 157 FA BT ER R 77 ELF)‘r SHEE
previously unrecognised deferred tax AEEEN R
assets (170,808) (709,162)
Effect of changes in tax rate on the balance ¢t & & &) i B VIELATS R 2 58
of deferred income tax at the beginning of 2
the period - 49,946
Research and development expenses and & R R EABEREB NG
other additional deduction as required by B
taxation laws (2,842,842) (1,2983,806)
Income tax expenses at the Group’s effective EAREB BB R EATEH
tax rate &M 3,114,922 1,960,201
Note:  The Group’s income tax has been provided at the statutory i ARERGREESBEBEARISNHM[E

rate based on the estimated taxable profits arising in the
PRC.

FEAATL TS RR SMOEE B R FHR -
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EARNINGS PER SHARE Bkl
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2024 2023
BE HE
—ECoE —E-=F
AA=t+HIE S~B=+HIt
< E A HAR 7~1E A Hp
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBES) (REEED
Basic earnings per share ARG
Continuing operations BELE 4.68 3.77
Diluted earnings per share pe sy g
Continuing operations SERE 4.68 3.77

The numerator of basic earnings per share is determined
based on the net profit for the Period attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company, less net profit attributable to the
restricted shares expected to be vested in the future.

The denominator of basic earnings per share is the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding.

The numerator of diluted earnings per share is determined
based on the net profit for the Period attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company, which means that when
calculating the numerator, net profit attributable to the
restricted shares expected to be vested in the future which
are deducted in calculating the basic earnings per share are
added back.

The denominator of diluted earnings per share is equal to the
sum of: (1) the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue of the parent company in basic earnings per share;
and (2) increase in the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assuming conversion of dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

In calculating the weighted average number of ordinary shares
increased upon conversion of dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares in issue, the dilutive potential
ordinary shares issued in previous periods are assumed to be
converted at the beginning of the Period; the dilutive potential
ordinary shares issued in the Period are assumed to be
converted on the issue date.

EREGRKGEND FUNEER AR R EEK
BEREE HUF AR - FNRR BB FERT R KA
it SR R I VE AR R O A B RESE ©

EAgRYmEs B RBEITEINE RN
I8 -

HEERKEND FINEER AR R Bk
PRIREE BE R BEE - Blo FHEERE
RNEEEERSRWED FREHKRNE
B TEEH AR AT AR SR 1 14 AR ZE 0% A o

BESRKENDEER THIMEZM (1)
EAgRY P B AR S BT E B IE
FHE RQBRERBLECELBREBRR
BRI A AN E B R A A IR I 8K

EHERELAEEBRERASEHITER
s T 4 0 69 3 388 A AR B0 DDA ST I B - IA
AAEETORBEEEERE  BREE
HENER  ERBRTHIREEEEL R
B RRRERITRER
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6. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

6 #“RWEE

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are ErmprgRiEnARTENT
based on:
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2024 2023
Bz H=E
TENEF —E-=F
ARA=t+HILE NA=+HIE
M8 A HE 718 A HAR
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEE) CRigERD
Revenue Wz
Net profit for the Period attributable to ordinary 578 M 22 &) & 38 A I R A & 2
shareholders of the Company ) E 13,631,257 10,954,145
Less: Deductible net profit attributable to W IR BB TEET AR R
restricted shares which are expected A AR SHPR AR R A
to be vested in the future F 18,075 -
Adjusted net profit for the Period attributable to & BEBRA R B S @B R R
ordinary shareholders of the Company & HFEA)E 13,613,182 10,954,145
Shares B
Weighted average number of outstanding RA R EATEINE BAR A INFE T 15
ordinary shares of the Company (thousand) H (T 2,906,756 2,905,632
Diluted effect — weighted average number of WK E — L @AY INHEF 152
ordinary shares
Restricted shares (thousand) PR ) 14 R B2 (AR 2,568 2,371
Adjusted weighted average number of FARIEAR DT EATEINE BAREY
outstanding ordinary shares of the Company Il F 9B # (T %)
(thousand) 2,909,324 2,908,003

As at 30 June 2024, the restricted shares of the Company did
not have any diluted effect on earnings per share. Therefore,
the diluted earnings per share are identical to the basic

earnings per share.

TECNFEARAZTH  ARABERSIER
SUHERRaRERETE  AUHEBESHRK
smEEAREGR RS EER -
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TRADE RECEIVABLES 7 FEBRER
The aging of trade receivables is recognised based on the time FEU IR SRR B IR I A FE R A [ T DA TR RR
of revenue recognition. The aging analysis of trade receivables FEWBR R A BREC D AT A0 T
is as follows:
30 June 31 December
2024 2023
—EMNF —E=F
NA=tH +=—A=+—~H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REET) (482851
Within 1 year 1FLAAN 62,193,317 55,779,350
110 2 years 1E B4 6,281,993 2,063,458
210 3 years 2FEIF 1,879,277 3,139,994
Over 3 years 3F M E 5,447,302 4,466,834
Total A& 75,801,889 65,449,636
Less: Provision for bad debt of trade B ERR R AR
receivables 3,987,373 3,683,617
Total a5t 71,814,516 61,866,019
The subsidies for new energy vehicle sales are included in the Lt EUR RS R RE IR T B A AL K o

above trade receivables.
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7. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

7. BRI (8

30 June 2024 (Unaudited)
“E-MERAZTARES)

Provision for Carrying
Book balance bad debt amount
RESE BREE REEE
Amount  Percentage (%) Amount  Percentage (%)
Ex E (%) &8 FHREAI(%)
Provision for bad debt based on BIEREREE
individual assessment 1,016,528 1.34 1,007,661 99.13 8,867
Provision for bad debt based on collective  IREREREHAAHE
assessment by credit risk portfolio ZREE 74,785,361 98.66 2,979,712 3.98 71,805,649
Total = 75,801,889 100.00 3,987,373 71,814,516
31 December 2023 (Audited)
“ECZETCAZT-RESEH)
Book balance Provision for bad debt Carrying amount
RESE EREE RAERE
Amount  Percentage (%) Amount  Percentage (%)
Ex ELA1(%) 8 FHRLAI%)
Provision for bad debt based on B REREE
individual assessment 1,021,450 1.56 1,005,380 98.43 16,070
Provision for bad debt based on collective  IREREREHAA R
assessment by credit risk portfolio ZRER 64,428,186 98.44 2,578,237 4.00 61,849,949
Total = 65,449,636 100.00 3,583,617 61,866,019
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7. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 7. BEBRER (@&
Trade receivables with provision for bad debt based on BT REREFENELBEERBERLET ¢

individual assessment are shown as follows:

30 June 2024 (Unaudited)
—E_MEXNA=THGREET)
Book Provision for Provision
balance bad debt rate (%) Reason of provision

AREIBREE RARER FHELHI(%)  FHREH

Customer 1 BE— 156,202 156,202 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
FESHEE W E
Customer 2 ®EZ 110,377 110,377 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
FE T SE W E
Customer 3 BE= 84,616 84,616 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
FESHE A N E
Customer 4 =Fm 80,034 80,034 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
FE oA U E
Customer 5 BFER 74,601 74,601 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
FE AW E
Others HAh 510,698 501,831 98.26

Total A&t 1,016,528 1,007,661
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7. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 7 BEREXR (@&
As at 30 June 2024, trade receivables with provision for bad RZEZMFEXA=+8  BErTHieERE
debt based on collective assessment are shown as follows: BRREWERBRIT
Book Provision for Provision
balance impairment rate (%)
REGE AEEE FHR LA (%)
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1ERAE1F) 62,173,949 434,374 0.70
1-2 years (inclusive) 1-2F(525) 6,237,466 269,843 4.33
2-3 years (inclusive) 2-3F(53F) 1,867,613 188,745 10.11
3-4 years (inclusive) -4F(54F) 2,230,105 378,305 16.96
4-5 years (inclusive) 4-5F(85F) 1,105,853 538,070 48.66
Over 5 years S 1,170,375 1,170,375 100.00
Total G 74,785,361 2,979,712
As at 31 December 2023, trade receivables with provision R-TE-=F+-"F=+—8 HE:TigE
for bad debt based on collective assessment are shown as IREFBREKERBERIT ¢
follows:
Book Provision for Provision
balance impairment rate (%)
REH®HE WEER FTHRLLA1 (%)
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1ELUR(E1F) 55,717,119 726,642 1.30
1-2 years (inclusive) 1-2F (8 25) 2,062,784 99,861 4.84
2-3 years (inclusive) 2-3F(53F) 3,074,633 208,900 6.79
3-4 years (inclusive) 3-4F(B4F) 1,905,008 160,374 8.42
4-5 years (inclusive) 4-5F(55F) 503,007 216,915 43.12
Over 5 years S5FE 1,165,545 1,165,545 100.00

Total Akt 64,428,186 2,578,237
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The movements of provision for bad debt of trade receivables
are as follows:

B %5 ¥R R B &E

30 June 2024
—E-MFERA=1H
RMB'000 AR#TIT
FEURBRFX (&)

JEW R TR AR Z BT

Exchange
Balance at differences Balance
beginning Charge Reversal Write-off  on translation at the end
of the for the for the during the of foreign of the
Period/year Period/year Period/year Period/year operations Period/year
/54 x4/ F /5 x4/ F MERE B/8x
BE HE Eo £ REZE BE
30 June 2024 ZZMFA=+H
(Unaudited) (RiEBE) 3,583,617 647,482 (276,583) 34,349 (1,492) 3,987,373
31 December 2023 ZEZ=FTZA=1-H
(Audited) (f&55) 2,789,698 1,328,105 (444,490) (93,220) 3,524 3,583,617

For the period ended 30 June 2024, there was no recovery
of provision for bad debt or reversal of significant amounts or
write-off of significant trade receivables.

As at 30 June 2024, the total trade receivables and contract
assets of the five greatest amounts were RMB25,578,326,000,
accounting for 32.56% of the aggregate closing balance of
trade receivables and contract assets. The aggregate closing
balance of the provision impairment on assets for the total
trade receivables and contract assets of the five greatest
amounts were RMB33,166,000.

BILLS PAYABLES

REBE-ZT_NFXNA=TBEHHE  B\EE
EEWOEONSEEENGIA  BEEN
JE W BRFAZ SH AR ©

R-Z-WENA=Z+H  BEREFFINER
EEATSEM AR R ARK25,578,326
Tt HEKERMABEERRGEAR
H1)32.56% ' EWERFAREEAT R
AAGHEEREEFEPRBBEBLTARYE
33,166 T 7T °

BNRE

30 June 31 December

2024 2023

—E-mE T =F

~A=+H +=-—A=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEFES) (&8 2&5T)

Commercial acceptance bills EE S 1,946,782 3,555,967
Bank acceptance bills RITERRIESR 312,606 497,347
Total &5t 2,259,388 4,053,314

As at 30 June 2024, the outstanding balance of bills payables
of the Group was RMB11,536,000 due to the fact that the
bearer did not make collection at maturity.

RZEZMFESAZ+H BRFBEARX
HEIMTEY  ARERBRESARE
11,536 T LY FE (A IR HIRAS -
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9. TRADE PAYABLES 9. ENEX

30 June 31 December
2024 2023
—E-EF —EC=F
AA=+H +=ZRA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REET) (k& 2=5t)
Within one year 1FE AR 206,239,257 193,266,994
1to 2 years 1FE B 2F 572,152 551,922
2to 3 years 2FEIF 250,566 264,242
Over 3 years 3FEM F 455,140 346,659
Total &t 207,517,115 194,429,817
Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally FERRZRAGTE - UBBEE—FUABE -
settled within one year. The aging of trade payables is based ERRFNERRENEEM L  ARkER

on the time of recognising the purchase of materials and LIS MR R AR o

goods or accepting services.
As at 30 June 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Group had no RZZEZWNFAA=ZFTARZZ=_=F+=
significant trade payables that were aged over one year. A=+—8 SERBB1IFHEZENE
K e
10. SHARE CAPITAL 10+ B

The registered and paid-in capital of the Company is analysed

ARBEMRERBRADHTIT

as follows:
30 June 31 December
2024 2023
—E-mF ZE=F
ANA=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REES) (g 25t
Registered and paid-in capital ER PSSR G 2,909,266 2,911,143

The Group completed the repurchase and cancellation of

AEBRANHZHKDELFHARBK D
1,877,0000% - FRRAEBEARK 1D « EEUK
BRRR AR > AR ME1,877F 7T ©

1,877,000 A shares of RMB1 each during the period, leading
to a decrease in the share capital of RMB1,877,000 for the
period.
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11. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(1)

2022 Employee Share Ownership Plan of the
Group

On 22 April 2022, BYD Company Limited held the
twenty-first meeting of the Seventh Session of the Board
of Directors of BYD Company Limited (the “Company”),
at which the resolution in relation to the 2022 Employee
Share Ownership Plan (Draft) of BYD Company Limited
and its summary was considered and approved.
It was proposed to implement the 2022 Employee
Share Ownership Plan of BYD Company Limited (the
“Employee Share Ownership Plan”) for the employee
representative supervisors and senior management of
BYD Company Limited and the mid-level management
and core backbone employees of BYD Group. The
Employee Share Ownership Plan was considered
and approved at the 2022 First Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2022.
The Company repurchased a total of 5,511,024 A
shares through the designated securities account for
repurchase by way of centralised bidding transactions,
accounting for 0.189% of the total share capital of the
Company. The repurchase was completed in June 2022
and the transfer registration was completed in July
2022. The subscription price of the Employee Share
Ownership Plan is RMBO per share, and no capital
contribution is required to be made by the participants.
The term of the Employee Share Ownership Plan shall
be 48 months from the date on which the Employee
Share Ownership Plan is considered and approved at
the general meeting and the Company announces that
the last batch of the underlying shares is transferred to
the Employee Share Ownership Plan.

B %5 ¥R R B &E

30 June 2024
—E-MFERA=1H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

11 BREXH

)

CECCHEAREZETIEHREAE

TR FMNAZ+ZH  hEK
MARARBHL BB MDAER AR

(UTHEBIRARNELEEEEE -
TR gE BERBEBT(LREk
MERAT -E-—F 8 THER:E

(ER)REMEBNHSR  HELE
HMIRHARABDBIRKRES SR
ERANBARLEAEBENTEEE

AR BOBHETIEECLEER
BERAFA-E-—FBTHAE

EDUATHBEIE THERTED - 2
Tﬁfg::iﬁﬂ_+t5”%_
= //\Euuﬁ-rﬂxijiﬁ
@@Tﬁlﬁhﬁ% NGIEER IR
AEHEPUEFHREIZIMNAN
%ﬁ@ﬁA%%@%%%ﬁammm4
B R RBRARR0.189% WA
—-v———Ji/\ﬂ:mﬁxEW§ —E-
FLAZTKBPER - A8 THRE
ZREEOL /K 2HEBREFH
& o REIRRFEMFELR48
@A BAREIFRTEGEKRRERS
ERBBADNRAERE —FEZNR
ERPEABIFRFEE T 2AR
“ o

,—L.Ai
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11. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

()

2020 Share Option Incentive Scheme of the
Group’s subsidiary BYD Semiconductor

On 10 May 2021 and 16 June 2021, the Company held
the 11th Meeting of the Seventh Session of the Board
and the extraordinary general meeting, respectively,
during which the Company considered and approved
the Resolution on Proposed Implementation of the
Share Option Incentive Scheme by BYD Semiconductor
Company Limited, and approved the adoption of
the 2020 Share Option Incentive Scheme of BYD
Semiconductor Company Limited (the “Subsidiary
Share Option Scheme”). The Subsidiary Share Option
Scheme granted 33,088,200 share options to 36
incentive grantees, including directors (excluding
independent non-executive directors), senior
management and core key personnel (but excluding
supervisors) of BYD Semiconductor, representing
7.353% of the then registered capital of BYD
Semiconductor.

The share options granted under the Subsidiary Share
Option Scheme shall be exercised in three tranches,
and the corresponding vesting periods shall be 24
months, 36 months and 48 months from the date of
grant, respectively.

On 11 May 2024, BYD Semiconductor Company
Limited held the 2024 first extraordinary general
meeting, at which the Resolution on the Cancellation
of Outstanding Share Options Granted in the Second
and Third Tranches of the 2020 Share Option
Incentive Scheme of the Company was considered
and approved. It agreed on the cancellation of all
outstanding share options granted in the second and
third tranches of the 2020 Share Option Incentive
Scheme of the company, and proposed to cancel a
total of 22,928,300 share options.

Except for the abovementioned 22,928,300 share
options of BYD Semiconductor Company Limited
proposed to be cancelled, the Group did not have
any outstanding, vested and lapsed equity instrument
during the period.

1

IR A2 3214 (&)

()

2020 KBz F AR EHEYE
ERERERBTE

“E-—FRAFTHEZZE—FX
A+7B ARESRBRAELEE
TET-REHEREBRRERS
EEBBRT (BN E Ry
BRAREE RSB R 8%
) HERML DM EERGE
PR A A1 20204F x4 ERfE i Eh s &I ([
NRIIRERAERT B - FAREIREE
BrtEneEt narEENES
(TEEBYIENTES)  BRERE
AB  BRULEBAB(BETBREES)
AR 36 1E B ¥ R % 73,308.828
MRRMEERRE « (R R B R R
MEARE LB A7.353% °

AR F A B AR BRI R B4R T 0 R A
HRED = RATHE - HEMNEFHS R
AEETBEE24EA - 36/@A - 48
@A -

bR B RO BRARNKR TS
MFERA+—HBRA-ZE-_WFE
—RERRRATERAB T (ER
A F2020F IRAE BT EINE
Z - CHEETRITERESRRENZ
%) - BB A F120204F A% 4 B4
FENE - ZHEE TEBMRITE
F 2 B AR REHAME - BEE SHAR R HAME
512,292.83819 °

bttt B ERR D BR A AH
AR EIE2,292.83E (05N - K

SEARMEITRE - BB RKBEE
mIE -



Interim Report 2024
—E_MERHRE

Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R R B &E

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The equity instruments outstanding as at the end of the period

are as follows:

1

— = —

— =

30 June 2024

mERA=+H

RMB'000 AR#TIT

IR A2 3214 (&)
HIRBTEIINSEEET AT ¢

Other equity instruments

HittfEsm TH

The range of

The remaining

option price life of contract

TRERNEER ERFEREAR

Sales personnel HEABR RMBO per share 1~ 13 months
o/ 1% 1EA-131EA

1-13 months

RMBO per share 18 A-131E A

Management personnel BIEAB ot/ & 1 - 13 months
RMBO per share 118 A-131@ A

1-13 months

Research personnel MEAE o7t/ B 118 8-131@ A
Manufacturing and other personnel BIEREMAR RMBO per share 1 - 13 months
ot/ 1’ 118 A-131E A

NEmEENROMERMAT :

Equity-settled share-based payments are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2024 (unaudited)

H£2024%F6830H L6188 BB (GREE)

The determination of the fair value of equity instrument
as at the date of grant

RTEERIARARBENETHE
The important parameters of the fair value of equity
instrument as at the date of grant

RTEERIAAARBENEZSH

The basis for determining the quantity of equity
instruments available for exercise

A{TH#ER TAHEMNETE KRR

The reason for the significant difference between the
current year’s estimate and the previous year’s
estimate

REFBEFFEARERAEZEENRE

The cumulative amount of equity-settled share-based
payments credited to in capital reserve

NgmEE RN N ABAREN RS

Based on the closing price of the shares

on the date of grant or the binomial model

to determine

RIER T H IR RWBARE SR — AN RE T
Based on the closing price of the shares

on the date of grant; or the expected volatility
or the risk-free interest rate

BT AREWRE  HERHRBE - ERARMN X

Based on the best estimate of the management

BEEENREMDE
Nil

1,371,481
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11. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The share-based payments incurred during the period are
follows:

11 RO E
as ARMBEENRMDIAERMOT

Equity-settled
share-based

payments

UREREEN

BROEZLER

Sales personnel HEABR 26,753
Management personnel BEEAR 83,755
Research personnel HEAE 123,521
Manufacturing and other personnel BUEREMAR 39,891

Total

A&t 273,920
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CONTINGENT EVENTS

Contingent liabilities arising from pending litigation or
arbitration and its financial impact

Action against Foxconn

On 11 June 2007, a Hong Kong High Court (the “Court”) action
(the “June 2007 Action”) was commenced by a subsidiary of
Foxconn International Holdings Limited and a company jointly
controlled by its ultimate holding company (the “Plaintiffs”)
against the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group
(the “Defendants”) for using confidential information alleged to
have been obtained improperly from the Plaintiffs. The Plaintiffs
discontinued the June 2007 Action on 5 October 2007 without
any liability to the Defendants. On the same day, the plaintiffs
initiated a new set of legal proceedings in the Hong Kong High
Court (the “October 2007 Action”). The Defendants named in
the October 2007 Action are the same as the Defendants in
the June 2007 Action, and the claims made by the Plaintiffs
in the October 2007 Action are based on the same facts and
grounds in the June 2007 Action. The remedies sought by
the Plaintiffs in the October 2007 Action include an injunction
restraining the Defendants from using the alleged confidential
information, an order for the disgorgement of profit made by
the Defendants through the use of the confidential information,
damages based on the loss suffered by the Plaintiffs and
exemplary penalties. The total damages sought by the
Plaintiffs in the October 2007 Action have not been quantified.
On 2 October 2009, the Defendants instituted a counter-action
against Foxconn International Holdings Limited and certain
of its subsidiaries for their intervention, by means of illegal
measures, in the operations involving the Company and certain
of its subsidiaries, collusion, written and verbal defamation,
and the economic loss as a result of the said activities since
2006.

As of the date of this report, the case is still in proceedings.
With the assistance of the legal adviser responsible for the
case on behalf of the Company, the Board believes that the
final result of the proceeding and compensation obligations (if
any) cannot be estimated reliably.

12 -

B %5 ¥R R B &E
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12. CONTINGENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

The contingent liabilities arising from the guarantee provided
by the Group and its financial impact are as follows:

12 -

&ﬁ%la (»E)

AEBRBERTIAOIBABERLREMBE
EBIRAOE

30 June 31 December

2024 2023
—EComE —E-=F
AA=+tHB +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REFETT) (R 25

Guarantees that the Company can provideto  #ti% T F R FIHEL & 8

banks for financing granted to subsidiaries HEFER

WARITIE

118,173,488 115,028,008

As at 30 June 2024, the actual guarantees provided by
the Company for its subsidiaries and related parties were
RMB36,058,002,000 and RMB14,144,239,000 (31 December
2023: RMB43,872,398,000 and RMB18,319,231,000).

The Group entered into cooperation contracts and documents
with certain customers (including end customers) and
third parties or related financial institutions. According to
the arrangements of the relevant cooperation contracts
and documents, the Company undertakes the repurchase
obligations to these financial institutions. If a customer defaults
or specific conditions stipulated in the contract occur, the
Company inherits all the creditor’s rights and related interests,
and has the right to take relief measures such as recovery and
sale of new energy vehicles to repay the remaining debts owed
by the customer to the financing institution, and would reserve
the right to pursue recourse for the balance of the creditor’s
rights. Management is of the opinion that the recovered assets
will be able to be realised, and the proceeds from the sales
will basically cover the remaining debts due to the financing
institutions. As of 30 June 2024, the Group’s maximum
exposure to these obligations was RMB1,284,549,000 (31
December 2023: RMB1,615,016,000), and there was no
customer default or specific conditions as stipulated in the
contracts which the Company was required to make any
payment.

The Group made an impairment on financial guarantee
contracts and recognised a loss allowance of RMB49,090,000
(2023: RMB61,984,000) based on expected credit losses.

RZZE-_WMERA=Z+H  ARAAH

AR R TEREEROERAAR
#36,058,002F Tt R A R#14,144,239F
T(ZE-ZF+-_AZ=Z+—H: AR¥
43,872,398 F L &k AR#18,319,231F 1) °

REFHRELEZS (ERHEP)RE=FK
MR ERERITSEaR I - RIEME
%aﬁéﬂﬁxﬁmﬁm PN E= =
BHBEAELRER ERFPENXZTES
B4 VR E R - AR B AR S ERE
RiaEEREw - 0B A 1TERE S I & = 3
BERABERUERRE - NENEP R E#
BRI SRR SR+ WAR B o) 3 Tl e R R B
MREETTERMEN - ERERA - WK
EERMNEE MEZTWAEREHZTE
BEKBEOFBIAR - BEZTZWMF KA
=+H AEEHZEEBHRAHEOR/A
R¥1,284549F M(ZE =+ A=+
—HB: AR#1615016TT) BRBELER
EPENNERNENFERGEMTART
BT A A RIERER

REBUATEHRERERAER - HUBKIER
ARETRERETRRABRAEBFBARE
49,090 F (ZE == : AR¥61,9847F
JT) °
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COMMITMENTS 13+ AHEEE
30 June 31 December
2024 2023
—E-mE e
RA=E+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REE) (& &EET)
Capital commitments BAEG 27,670,598 35,727,463
Investment commitments & 486,232 535,527
Total =X 28,156,830 36,262,990
RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 14 BB

(1)

Related party transactions of goods and services

Purchase of goods and accepting service from related

(1) BBRIERREERS
BB BERRMES S

parties
January-June Transaction  Excess of January-June
Details of transactions 2024 limit approved  transaction limit 2023
“E-NE By REHA —E-=HE
RHAA —Z5xA RH5EE RHEE —ZXA
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(REET) (RigZET)
Joint ventures Purchase of goods and 447,991 2,138,615 No 519,256
CRTES accepting service x
REARAERSEH
Associates Purchase of goods and 4,126,713 8,633,471 No 5,325,008
Batx accepting service %
REAQNEISH
Other related parties Purchase of goods and 100,032 2,104,356 No 32,459
i B A acoepting service %
REAmNEXSH
Total 4,674,736 12,876,442 5,876,723
A

=N}
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14. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(1)

14 BEBXRZ (&)

Related party transactions of goods and services 1)

(continued)

Sales of goods and rendering of services to related

parties

BELIEmREERS ()

) BA R 77 36 5 78 hn BB 1 85 75

January-June

January-June

Details of transactions 2024 2023
—E-mEF —E=F
REGNE —Z25xA —Z=XA
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(REE=T) (RECFEET)
Joint ventures Sales of goods and 1,155,928 845,184
aehE rendering of services
o P AR B 7
Associates Sales of goods and 156,101 224,731
Bib e (b2 rendering of services
& B AR B S
Other related parties Sales of goods and 12,682 66,260
H {th BAHE 77 rendering of services
& R AR 2 7
Total 1,324,711 1,136,175
AN

=N




14. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(2) Leases with related parties

As lessees

January-June 2024 (Unaudited)

Interim Report 2024
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30 June 2024
—E-MFERA=1H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

14 BEBXRZ (&)

2 BEHELIHESE
1ERAETEA

ZERCME-ERACRKEER)

Lease
payments Variable
for short-term lease

leases and payments
leases of  not included

low-value in the Interest
assets with measurement expenses  Additions to
Type of simplified of lease Rental onlease  right-of-use
leased assets  approach liabilities paid liabilities assets
BEEER
BRAE ES DN
NEBESE HEEE RER
BEEE HEN  HERTES B30 HEEE Eme
R HEBR HEARE e MEXH  fKREEE
Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. Housing - - 3,536 35 -
mMER Ea R TEER AT FE
Tianjin BYD Auto Co., Ltd. Housing - - 3,515 29 1,495
REDEAEARAT EE
Total - - 7,051 64 1,495

ait
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14. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

14 BEBXRZ (&)

(CONTINUED)
(2) Leases with related parties (continued) (2) BEEAFEEGE
As lessees (continued) EEATA (B)
—mo—

January-June 2023 (Unaudited)

Lease
payments for Variable
short-term lease

leases and payments
leases of  notincluded

=

T=FBRACRKRER)

low-value inthe Interest
assets with  measurement expenses  Additions to
Type of simplified of lease Rental onlease  right-of-use
leased assets approach liabilities paid liabilities assets
BILEEH
b yick
MEEEEE  AMAHE SE e
HEEE HEH  BREHED AENEE fRAE
BR BeER WEEENTE  ANE: ARMEXH B
Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. Housing - - 555 36 -
mMER Ea R TEER AT BE
Tianjin BYD Auto Co., Ltd. Housing - - 1,718 35 3,442
RENTHTEERAA FE
Total - - 2,273 Il 3,442

At
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14. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 14 BEBXZS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(3)  Providing guarantees to related parties (3) AEBEHMAIRMHEER
Loan guarantees R R
30 June 2024 (Unaudited) ZToMEXNA=ZTAGESE
Whether guarantee
Commencement date Maturity date has been
Guarantee amount  of guarantee of guarantee performed
EREE ERERA BRIBA ERREBT
BYD Auto Finance Co., Ltd. 14,087,150 13 July 2023 - 13 July 2027 - No
HERAESHERAA 5 February 2024 5 February 2028 i
ZECZFtATZH “E-tEtA+=HE
E-E-ME-AEA ZE-\$¥ZAEA
Tianjin Hongdi Financial Lease Co., Ltd. 19,255 31 December 2022 7 December 2024 - No
REREREREBRAA “E-"F+ZA=1-H 19February 2025 B
“B-NET-ALRE
ZE-REZATRA
MCC Ramu New Energy Technology 37,750 5 January 2022 5 April 2030 No
Co., Ltd. —E--#-A1A —E-EEMARA &
PR RN AR A
Hubei Energy Storage Co., Ltd. 84 1 February 2019 1 February 2026 No
[FE BRI BRA A “B2-N§=A-H ZE-REZA-H )
(4)  Transfer of related parties assets (4 BHIEEEE

January-June

January-June

Details of transaction 2024 2023
—E-F ZEC=F
?C % W ;§ —E= 75 H _:I:/_\ )EJ
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REFEST) (RECEE
Joint ventures Purchase of fixed assets
GERE BEETERE 4,163 5,045
Associates Purchase of fixed assets
B2 BEETEE 59,847 386,590
Other related parties Purchase of fixed assets
H b B gk BEETEE 16,658 258,704
Total 80,668 650,339

At
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14. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 14 BEBXZS (&)
(CONTINUED)

(5) Others (5) Hfts
January-June January-June
2024 2023
—EMNF —E=F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RESEET) CReggEED
Key Management Compensation Bl =S EYN=E 55,215 50,636

The share-based payment expense recognised from
January to June 2024 for the 2022 Employee Share
Ownership Plan granted to key management personnel

AAREREBEABERN T -_—_FET
BRFENR_ZE_NF -2 AERNRMN
YTRNEAABARKE12457F T LiltEB

of the Company was RMB12,457,000. The above BEZIARE -
compensation does not include this amount.
(6)  Balance of related parties receivables (6) EREEHEWFRIEAEE
30 June 2024 31 December 2023
—E-MEXA=TA “E-ZFTZRAZT-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(R&E:H) (E&:1)
Book Provision for Book Provision for
balance bad debts balance bad debts
REHE BRER REHE ZRER
Joint ventures AERE 2,268,834 472,024 2,044,479 651,160
Associates BeEtE 191,431 27,153 152,234 27,355
Other related parties Eth A 55,076 72 48,045 83
Total ait 2,515,301 499,249 2,044,758 678598




14.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

@)

®)

Balance of related parties payables
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14 -

— = —

— =

30 June 2024

mERA=+H

RMB'000 AR#TIT

BB S (&

(7)) BEBLENRERE

30 June 2024 31 December 2023

—E-ME bt St 3

~A=tH +-A=1+-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REE) (e&a)

Joint ventures RELE 618,023 379,093
Associates Ao 3,464,446 3,857,503
Other related parties HinEam 265,350 352,002
Total Al 4,347,819 4,588,818
The amounts due from and due to related parties are FE U FE AT BEHS: 75 IR N ET RIS - 4R

interest-free and unsecured.

Monetary funds deposited with related parties

PR -

(8) TFHRABINEWES

30 June 2024 31 December 2023

—E-ME —EC-=F

AAZTH TZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEE) (=)

BYD Auto Finance Co., Ltd. hEETEERERAT - 3,506,856

The annual interest rate of the above deposits for the
current period is 3.0%-3.1% above the benchmark
interest rate published by the People’s Bank of China
for deposits of the same period, and an interest income
of RMB33,536,000 was recognised in January to June
2024 (2023: 3.1%-3.2%, and an interest income of
RMB129,476,000 was recognised in January to June
2023).

R ERAGTERFFEZEBRREAR
RITAMRBTERELERN X B)F
B3.0%-31% @ —E_MFE—%F,XA
TR EWAANRBES3,536F L(=
E_=FF 31%-3.2% ' —_ T
—F—ENAERFEBRAARE
129,476F JT) °
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15. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE

1) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

30 June 2024 (Unaudited)

15 DRAEEKE
UARBEFENEENGRE
“TWMERNA=ZTBEREER)

)

Fair value measurement using

AREETEFRANEAE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

EZNHE EEIFUER

ERMSRE BAE BAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-ER FZEBR FZER B3t
Financial assets held for trading RHUeREE = 17,388,054 = 17,388,054
Other equity instrument investments Hitgs TARE 1,581,315 3,042,675 1,797,892 6,421,882
Other non-current financial assets HiEroemEeE - 1,462,130 1,351,967 2,814,007
Receivables financing JENFIERE = 6,292,399 = 6,292,399
1,581,315 28,185,258 3,149,859 32,916,432
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15. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

(1)

()

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(continued)

31 December 2023 (Audited)

RMB’000

15+ DAREEKEGE
URAREBERENEENSE(E

(1)

ARETT

- ZFF+ A+ HEE

Fair value measurement using
ArBEHERBNBAR

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

EZUEE EERFUEHE

ERMHRE BAE BAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-ER FZER FZER G
Financial assets held for trading RAMECHEE - 9,562,550 - 9,562,550
Other equity instrument investments HtERTARE 1,014,460 1,297,415 3,015,408 5,327,283
Other non-current financial assets EtEnsemEs - 1,225,113 1,471,261 2,696,374
Receivables financing R IER A - 5,564,924 - 5,564,924
1,014,460 17,650,002 4,486,669 23,151,131
Financial liabilities held for trading RotEHAaE - 7713 - 7713

The fair value measurement in Level 1 (2 EBE-—REBRAAEBHEGE
The fair values of listed equity instrument investments TEKE  UmiGmER

are based on quoted market prices.

eyt
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15. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

©)

The fair value measurement in Level 2

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments
contracts which are the foreign currency forward
contracts with banks and adopts valuation techniques
similar to forward pricing and present value methods
for measurement. The model incorporates various
market observable inputs including the credit quality
of counterparties and foreign exchange spot and
forward rates and yield curve. The carrying amounts
of foreign currency forward contracts are the same
as their fair values. As at 30 June 2024, the mark to
market value of derivative financial assets is the net
value after offsetting the credit valuation adjustment
attributable to the default risk of derivative instrument
counterparties. The change of counterparty credit risk
has no significant impact on the evaluation of hedging
effectiveness of designated derivatives in hedging
relationship and other financial instruments measured
at fair value.

For the wealth management products at fair value
through profit or loss and receivables financing,
the Group will estimate their fair values by using a
discounted cash flow valuation model based on the
market interest rates of instruments with similar terms
and risks. For the equity instruments at fair value,
the Group will estimate their fair values based on a
combination of market data and valuation models.

REESEBITEI L TITESBRIAES
B BINEREIER - HABURE
HTEBUA RIREF A E R T
e e RAVRE T ZEM S B R
W AE BREXZIEFHNERE
£ - BEAE HARE R FNF R 4R  Hh
ERAARMEmEBREQA L EEM
B R=ZZT=-_WMFA=+AH " {T4&
CRBEEMITMERB BRETHE
RIOTET AR SHFENRRTER
HMERE2ZFE - XZHFER
R EME - WREEAERFIEENT
AT EMEBARIERFTE A
AREEFENERIAE  HEEX

B 488
FE

RanBEFERLEESF AEEN
BPEMR  BUYGERE  A5EHE
MAGREkRBRARUNTAZ TS
MEZRERASREMHERLEE
AREE - AAAEBEENERT
B AEBETSEIEMGEEBELE
EEREMBERABEIE -
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15. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

(4)

The fair value measurement in Level 3

The Group’s finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments and
reports directly to the person in charge of accounting
institution. At each balance sheet date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the person in charge of accounting
institution.

For investments in restricted shares and unlisted equity
instruments, the Group adopts the recent transaction
method or applies valuation techniques to determine
their fair value, while valuation techniques include
market multiplier method, option pricing models,
etc. The measurement of fair value uses significant
unobservable parameters, including enterprise value-
to-revenue (“EV/Revenue”) ratio, Average EV/EBITDA
ratio, Average EV/Net profit margin, liquidity discount,
volatility, investment underlying net value, etc. The
financial instruments measured at the fair value in Level
3 on a recurring basis was not significantly sensitive to
a reasonable change in these unobservable inputs. The
Group believes that the estimated fair values resulting
from the valuation technique and the related changes
in fair values are reasonable, and they were the most
appropriate values at the balance sheet date.

15 ARAEBEEEE

4

B %5 ¥R R B &E

30 June 2024
—E-MFERA=1H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

(%)
BEZERAABETE

AEENMBHARNTEMITAR
REEFENBEMEF X EERA
TEERBEEARS - BEEE
BEXRA  MBEOMERTABE
2 wEAEEANZIZRAE"
TETESTHEBEEEABTZIAE -

HARERSE  ELTAER T AR
& FRLBRZANERBHER
MxkmETEAABE  HERNEE
TIZRECE - BREEERAE - HQ
A EBEENGERABTEENTAEH
W2 - ¥ EEWAEY/
Revenue DIt « FHOHEBEEB
MITERAEL R - FHLEEE
FRELE  REBME  REE -

HEEZNFES - BEE=-EX2A
BEFENSRITAYELTATHE
BABENGESHESE RGRAM - K

SEMEE - AEERMEFTNAAE
BEREZS  2EEN  WATERN
EEBBERBERAENEE-
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15. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

(4) The fair value measurement in Level 3

(continued)

Below is the summary of significant unobservable
inputs for main fair value measurement in Level 3:

30 June 2024 (Unaudited)

15+ AREBEEHEE(

i)
4) F=BR2AEBEEGE

ITRIENFE=ZERAABEFE
MEZ TR BRBAERL

—E-IEXNA=THCRER

Valuation Range (the weighted
technique Unobservable inputs average value)
fRER M TABEBAE EERER(NEFIE)
Other equity instrument Market approach Average EV/Revenue ratio  1.15-18.49
investments [z FHLEEE/WALLE
HipiEm TARE Average EV/EBITDA ratic  2.22-21.67
FHCEBEE/BRNE
GIE N
Average EV/Net profit
margin
THREEE/FHNE 51.72
B
Other equity instrument Option pricing Volatility of underlying 14.84%-52.72%
investments model asset price
HtbiEm TARE HitE e B ENEEBRIRE %
Other non-current financial Investment Net value of underlying RMB589,981,000 to

assets

HiFRBemEE

underlying net value
method

REROFEZE

investment

RERNNFE

RMB36,312,206,000
AR#589,981F JT-
AFE#36,312,206 T 7T
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The fair value measurement in Level 3

(continued)

31 December 2023 (Audited)

Fair value at the
end of the year

Valuation technique

15

30 June 2024
—E-NENA=1H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

—E-=f+=-/A=+-—HEEH

Unobservable inputs

Range (the weighted
average value)

ERAAEE  AERN THBRBAE #E R H (T 9E)
Other equity instrument 1,682,140  Market approach Average EV/Revenue ratio  1.15-18.49
investments Mg FTHLEEE AL R
Hit R TARE Average EV/EBITDA ratio  2.22-21.67
THGEBE/SRFE
R RIE 51.72
Average EV/Net profit
margin
THEEEE/FHE
b &
Other equity instrument 1,333,268  Option pricing Volatility of underlying 27.60%-47.83%
investments model asset price
HitEm TARE i) BNEEBRNRE %
Other non-current financial 99,216  Option pricing Volatility of underlying 10.31%
assets model asset price
HtbIEne e EE HitE e B REEERIKEE
Other non-current financial 1,372,045  Investment Net value of underlying RMB64,453,000 to
assets underlying net value Investment RMB35,884,267,000
HE 3RS maE method KRERNHZE AE#64,453F 7T -
KRERNFEZE AE#35,884,267F 7T
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15. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

(5) The adjustment information of continuous fair

value measurement in Level 3

Below is the adjustment information of continuous fair

value measurement in Level 3:

30 June 2024 (Unaudited)

15

AAEEREE
FEFE=BRAABENENAD

®)

=R

FENE=ZBRAAREBEFENHEH

R :

ZEZMERAZTHCEREER)

Changes in

unrealised gains

Total gains or losses or losses of

EBfRIAXEE assets held at

Through other the end of the

Opening ~ Transferto  Transferout  Through profit comprehensive Closing  period through

balance Level 3 of level 3 orloss income Purchases Disposal balance profit or loss

BAEEN

EEiAREN

#1 &\ L AR BR ERRERAG

B EE LR AR fali £ i B8 aBxNED

Other equity instument - AERTERE 3,015,408 - (1,207687) - (19,045) 99,216 - 1,797,892 -
nvestments

Oernoncurent— EfiERHSEER 1471261 = = (21,361) = 14993 (11292 1,351,967 (21,361)
financial assets

4,486,669 - (1,207687) (21,361) (19,045) 114209 (12,926) 3,149,859 (21,361)
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DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

®)

(6)

The adjustment information of continuous fair
value measurement in Level 3 (continued)

2023 (Audited)

B %5 ¥R R B &E

30 June 2024
—ECFERNA=TH
RMB'000 AR#TIT

15+ DAREEKEGE

®)

FRE=ZBEXRAAEBEFENAED
FE (&)

—E=F(RER

Changes in
unrealised gans
Total gains orlosses or losses of
EENGRRAE assels held at
Through other the end of the
Transferto Transferout — Throughprofit - comprehensive Closing ~ year through
Opening balance Level 3 oflevel 3 0rloss income Purchases balance  profitorloss
EXmRY
BB R
) EA Eh HARH Ex gEAEAE
B E-EN £2ER AR Rald EE B8 gERNEY
Other equty instrument investments EHERTERE 182112 1,229,687 (24670) - (66,736) 50,002 3015408 -
Other non-current financial assets Ergcaie 1,238,846 114278 - (100,458 - 285% 1471261 (100,458)
3065971 1343965 (24670) (100458) (66,736) 268,597 4 486,669 (100458
Transfers among continuous fair value 6) FELAEEFTENERER

hierarchies

During the period from January to June 2024, the
other equity instrument investment held by the Group
had quotations in an active market due to the release
of lock-up period, and its fair value was transferred
from Level 3 to Level 1, with a transfer amount of
RMB1,184,472,000, and its fair value was transferred
from Level 3 to Level 2, with a transfer amount of
RMB113,215,000. In addition, there were no other
significant transfers among fair value hierarchies of
financial instruments of the Group during the period
from January to June 2024.

In 2023, the other equity instrument investment held
by the Group had quotations in an active market
due to the release of lock-up period, and its fair
value was transferred from Level 3 to Level 1, with a
transfer amount of RMB24,670,000. Certain financial
instruments of the Group were valued using Level 3
valuation techniques as there were no observable
inputs available, and their fair values were transferred
from Level 2 to Level 3, with a transfer amount of
RMB1,343,965,000. In addition, there were no other
significant transfers among fair value hierarchies of
financial instruments of the Group in 2023.

R-Z-_MFE—Z=XAHE - A5£E
BEMEMER T ARERAREHE
b FHEERMSHRE  HAREE
NE=ZBREAE—EXR BERSE
BAREA184,472F T RE=E
REANBEZER BERSEAARKE
113,215F 7L o rib 24 - —ZF =
F—ENALKESRTANARE
BRI EBEEMEREY -

TR FE ASEBBHNEME
mTAKRERREHMBER  FEE
BHBSRE EQAABEREZE
KEBAF—BR EBRLBAAR
#24,670F T - AEBEHH SR T E
HErERnBRg A AEMRAE =
X EERNFAGE  IHEQR
BEXFE-_BREBIE=EL &
BarEAa ARY1,343965F T ° B
N ZEZ=FEAKESHT
EMRRBEEAZMELBERE

%o
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— = —

=

mMERA=+H

RMB'000 AR®TIT

15.

16.

17.

DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)
(7) The change of valuation techniques

There is no change of valuation techniques by the
Group during the period from January to June 2024.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Upon approval of “Zhong Shi Xie Zhu [2024] No. ABN42”
issued by the National Association of Financial Market
Institutional Investors, Shenzhen FinDreams Financial Leasing
Co., Ltd. is approved to issue green assets-backed notes
with a total amount of not more than RMB10 billion to qualified
investors in tranches. The issuance of the first tranche has
been closed on 12 July 2024, with an issue price of RMB100
each and an issuance scale of RMB3.116 billion.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on 28 August 2024.

15

16

17 -

AREEREE)
(7) MHERWEE

R-ZE-_MF—Z=XAHE - A%£E
REEZFHERITHER -

BEERERARENR

KHBRETRTER AR RTHE
[2024]ABN425R | 30 iz b - Ry Fh g & A
EARAREERNAERIEESE ARBITEE
BENBBIOVETHNEEEEIFZE -
FASHRTAN E—HBITIEDR=
T_NFEEA+—BER BITERAER
1007T *+ BEEITHREBEAAREI116(ET -

Fi M| R

BEERCRN T MFNATNBERR
RETEPBRE -
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